
2016 LEGISLATIVE CALENDAR 
(See S.C.R. 37, Chapter 48, Statutes of 2015) 

COMPILED BY THE OFFICE OF THE ASSEMBLY CHIEF CLERK 
Revised 10-7-15 

 
 

JANUARY 

 S M T W TH F S 
Interim 
Recess 

     1 2 
Wk. 1 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
Wk. 2 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
Wk. 3 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
Wk. 4 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
Wk. 1 31       

 

DEADLINES 
 
Jan. 1 Statutes take effect (Art. IV, Sec. 8(c)). 
   
Jan. 4 Legislature reconvenes (J.R. 51(a)(4)). 
  
Jan. 10  Budget Bill must be submitted by Governor (Art. IV, Sec. 12(a)). 
 
Jan. 15 Last day for policy committees to hear and report to fiscal committees 
 fiscal bills introduced in their house in the odd-numbered year.  
 (J.R. 61(b)(1)). 
 
Jan. 18 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day observed. 
 
Jan. 22 Last day for any committee to hear and report to the Floor bills introduced 
 in their house in 2015 (J.R. 61(b)(2)).  Last day to submit bill requests to 
 the Office of Legislative Counsel. 
 
Jan. 31 Last day for each house to pass bills introduced in that house in the odd-
 numbered year (J.R. 61(b)(3)), (Art. IV, Sec. 10(c)). 

 
 

 FEBRUARY 

 S M T W TH F S 
Wk. 1  1 2 3 4 5 6 
Wk. 2 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
Wk. 3 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
Wk. 4 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
Wk. 1 28 29      

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Feb. 15 Presidents’ Day observed. 
 
Feb. 19 Last day for bills to be introduced (J.R. 61(b)(4), J.R. 54(a)). 

 
 

MARCH 

 S M T W TH F S 
Wk. 1   1 2 3 4 5 
Wk. 2 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
Wk. 3 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
Spring 
Recess 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
Wk. 4 27 28 29 30 31   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mar. 17 Spring Recess begins upon adjournment (J.R. 51(b)(1)). 
 
Mar. 28 Legislature reconvenes from Spring Recess (J.R. 51(b)(1)). 
 
 

 
 

APRIL 
 S M T W TH F S 

Wk. 4      1 2 
Wk. 1 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
Wk. 2 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
Wk. 3 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
Wk. 4 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Apr. 1  Cesar Chavez Day observed. 
 
Apr. 22 Last day for policy committees to hear and report to fiscal committees 
 fiscal bills introduced in their house (J.R. 61(b)(5)). 

 
 

MAY 

 S M T W TH F S 
Wk. 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
Wk. 2 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
Wk. 3 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
Wk. 4 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

No 
Hrgs. 

29 30 31     
 

 
 
May 6 Last day for policy committees to hear and report to the Floor nonfiscal 
 bills introduced in their house (J.R. 61(b)(6)). 
 
May 13 Last day for policy committees to meet prior to June 6 (J.R. 61(b)(7)). 
 
May 27 Last day for fiscal committees to hear and report to the Floor bills 
 introduced in their house (J.R. 61(b)(8)). Last day for fiscal committees 
 to meet prior to June 6 (J.R. 61(b)(9)). 
 
May 30 Memorial Day observed. 
 
May 31 - June 3   Floor Session only. No committee may meet for any purpose 
 except Rules Committee, bills referred pursuant to Assembly Rule 77.2, 
 and Conference Committees (J.R. 61(b)(10), J.R. 61(h)). 

 
*Holiday schedule subject to final approval by Rules Committee. 
 

Page 1 of 2 



2016 LEGISLATIVE CALENDAR 
(See S.C.R. 37, Chapter 48, Statutes of 2015) 

COMPILED BY THE OFFICE OF THE ASSEMBLY CHIEF CLERK 
Revised 10-7-15 

 
 
 

JUNE 
 S M T W TH F S 

No 
Hrgs. 

   1 2 3 4 
Wk. 1 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
Wk. 2 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
Wk. 3 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
Wk. 4 26 27 28 29 30   

 

 
 
 
 
June 3 Last day for each house to pass bills introduced in that house  
 (J.R. 61(b)(11)). 
 
June 6 Committee meetings may resume (J.R. 61(b)(12)). 
 
June 15 Budget Bill must be passed by midnight (Art. IV, Sec. 12(c)(3)). 
 
June 30 Last day for a legislative measure to qualify for the Nov. 8 General 
 Election ballot (Elections Code Section 9040). 

 
 

JULY 
 S M T W TH F S 
Wk. 4      1 2 

Summer 
Recess 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
Summer 
Recess 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
Summer 
Recess 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

Summer 
Recess 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
Wk. 1 31       

 

 
 
 
 
 
July 1 Last day for policy committees to meet and report bills (J.R. 61(b)(13)). 
 Summer Recess begins upon adjournment, provided Budget Bill has been 
 passed (J.R. 51(b)(2)). 
 
July 4 Independence Day observed. 

 
 

AUGUST 

 S M T W TH F S 
Wk. 1  1 2 3 4 5 6 
Wk. 2 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

No 
Hrgs. 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
No 

Hrgs. 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

No 
Hrgs. 

28 29 30 31    
 

 
 
 
Aug. 1 Legislature reconvenes from Summer Recess (J.R. 51(b)(2)). 
 
Aug. 12 Last day for fiscal committees to meet and report bills (J.R. 61(b)(14)).
  
Aug. 15 - 31  Floor Session only. No committee may meet for any purpose except 
 Rules Committee, bills referred pursuant to Assembly Rule 77.2, and  
 Conference Committees (J.R. 61(b)(15), J.R. 61(h)). 
  
Aug. 19 Last day to amend on the Floor (J.R. 61(b)(16)). 
 
Aug. 31 Last day for each house to pass bills, except bills that take effect 
 immediately or bills in Extraordinary Session (Art. IV, Sec. 10(c),  
 J.R. 61(b)(17)). Final Recess begins upon adjournment (J.R. 51(b)(3)). 

 
 

IMPORTANT DATES OCCURRING DURING FINAL RECESS 
 

2016 
 Sept. 30 Last day for Governor to sign or veto bills passed by the Legislature before Sept. 1  

and in the Governor’s possession on or after Sept. 1 (Art. IV, Sec.10(b)(2)). 
 
 Oct. 2  Bills enacted on or before this date take effect January 1, 2017 (Art. IV, Sec. 8(c)). 
 
 Nov. 8  General Election. 
 
 Nov. 30 Adjournment sine die at midnight (Art. IV, Sec. 3(a)). 
 
 Dec. 5  2017-18 Regular Session convenes for Organizational Session at 12 noon  

(Art. IV, Sec. 3(a)). 
 
 2017 
 Jan.  1       Statutes take effect (Art. IV, Sec. 8(c)). 
 
 
 
 
 *Holiday schedule subject to final approval by Rules Committee. 

Page 2 of 2 



SACA Legislative Committee Meeting 

November 2, 2016 

Index 

1. Agenda for November 2, 2016 Legislative Committee meeting 

 
2. Review of Minutes from August 4, 2016 Legislative Committee meeting  

 
3. Legislative Report 

 Matt Siverling, Legislative Advocate 

 
4. Proposed legislation for next year: 

a) County – Court separation in PERS – Andy Sisk (Placer) and Simona Padilla-Scholtens (Solano) 

b) Orange County Proposals 

i. Proposal No. 1 – Hiring Independent Counsel and Staff 

ii. Proposal No. 2 – Ability to Make Decisions Without Personal Liability 

iii. Proposal No. 3 – Codifying the Independence of the Auditor-Controller 

iv. Proposal No. 4 – Investigatory Powers 

v. Proposal No. 5 – Protecting the Integrity of the Position 

 

5. Other Business – (depending on time) 

 
6. Chair for 2017-18, Rich Eberle (Yuba County) 

 
7. 2016 Legislation of Interest report 

 
8. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 
Distribution List: 

 Anita Dagan 

 Jenny Jones 

 Gene Hughes 

 Kristain Heston 

 Management and Fall Conference Team (6 copies) 



 
 

Legislative Committee Meeting Agenda 

November 2, 2016, 8:30AM 
 
 
1) Roll Call  –  

a) Legislative Members 
 

b) Non-Member 
 

 
2) Review of Minutes from August 4, 2016. 

 
 
3) Legislative Report - Matt Siverling, Legislative Advocate  

 
 

4) Proposed legislation for next year: 
 

a) County – Court separation in PERS (Andy and Simona) 
 

b) Orange County proposals -  
i)   PROPOSAL NO. 1 – Hiring Independent Counsel and Staff 
ii)  PROPOSAL NO. 2 – Ability to Make Decisions Without Personal Liability 
iii)  PROPOSAL NO. 3 – Codifying the Independence of the Auditor-Controller 
iv)  PROPOSAL NO. 4 – Investigatory Powers 
v)  PROPOSAL NO. 5 – Protecting the Integrity of the Position–  
 
 
 

5) Other Business – (depending on time) 
 

 
6) Chair for 2017-18, Rich Eberle 
 

 
7) Adjourn - 



 

STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY AUDITORS 
LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Teleconference Meeting 
August 4, 2016 

C – Call in 
E – Excused 
R – Representative 
A – Absent 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 

C Peggy Scroggins, 
Colusa County 

A Tracy Drager, 
San Diego 
County 

C Ben Lamera, 
Sacramento County 

C Jeff Burgh, 
Ventura County 

C John Naimo,  
Los Angeles 

A Paul Angulo, 
Riverside 

A Vicki Crow, Fresno 
County   

C Arlene Barrera, 
Los Angeles 

C Lauren Klein, 
Stanislaus County 

A Jim Erb, San Luis 
Obispo County 

A Debi Bautista, 
Tuolumne County   

C Bob Campbell, 
Contra Costa County 

C Tracy Schulze, 
Napa County 

C Nathan Black 
Sutter County 

C Rich Eberle, Yuba 
County 

  
 

A Andy Sisk, Placer 
County 

A Steve Manning, 
Alameda County 

C Jennie Ebejer, 
Siskiyou County 

  

C Dave Houser, Butte 
County 

A Simona Padilla-
Scholtens, 
Solano County 

C LeRoy Anderson, 
Tehama County 

  

 
SACA Legislative Meeting Participants: 

C Jim Hamilton, San 
Luis Obispo 

C Carol Orth, 
Alameda County 

C Justin Cooley, San 
Luis Obispo 

C Kim Lee, Santa Clara 
County 

C Melissa Wilks, 
Alameda County 

C Ed Price, Santa 
Barbara 

C Howard Newens, 
Yolo County 

C Edith Driscoll, Santa 
Cruz County 

 
 

STATE CONTROLLER’S OFFICE: 

C Jenny Jones C Gene Hughes C Michael Gungon C Anita Dagan 

C Jill Kanemasu       

 
LEGISLATIVE ADVOCATE: 

C Matt Siverling 

 
GUESTS: none noted 

 
1. Call Meeting to Order – Bob Campbell, Chair 

Time: 10:00 am  
 
Roll call conducted 
 
 



 

2. Review of Minutes –  
 

Made some minor corrections to the June minutes relating to attendance. 
 
Approved May minutes: Dave motioned to approve, Leroy seconded. 

 
3. Legislative Report –  

 
Matt’s report covers the last two months from June 30 through July 31, with the legislature 
returning August 1.  The chambers have until the end of August to move any bills forward, 
after that time they start over January 1, 2017. 
 
500 bills have been heard over the last three days in the two chambers, most of the bills 
dealing with appropriations.  One final hearing next week for each chamber. 
 
Bob asked about the timing in August and whether the Committee should anticipate another 
August teleconference meeting or something smaller such as emails.  Matt felt that it likely 
wouldn’t be necessary, but if something comes up that we need to address Matt will 
communicate with Bob et al. 
 
a) AB 2032 – Disincorporation –  

 
The bill has yet to be used by a jurisdiction.  A few issues with this bill have been 
cleaned up to date.  It’s currently on the Assembly floor for a concurrence vote.  Then off 
to governor for consideration.   
 
Bob mentioned that some of the long term issues are the health care and pension 
liabilities. 
 
John asked why we would want to keep the language general using “liabilities” instead of 
simply OPEB and Pension.  Bob responded that we want to encompass all liabilities, not 
just the aforementioned two.  There was some discussion about OPEB not coming onto 
our CAFR until 2018 and whether that would bar dealing with it in disincorporation.  It 
was settled that the obligation exists whether or not we report it on our CAFR pursuant 
to GASB. 
 

b) AB 779 – Local Government: Financial Disclosures –  
 
Includes the Top 10 highest paid local government employees.  At last minute before 
Committee the author amended the Top 10 highest paid list to only include elected 
officials.  The bill moved through with unanimous support.  Matt described the technical 
details from his Legislative Report. 
 

c) AB 2613 – Special District Audits / Financial Compilation –  
 
This bill pertains to special districts receiving no more than $50,000 in annual revenues.  
The auditor-controller will be able to call for a full audit at any time.  Otherwise, this bill 
provides an alternative and cheaper annual attestation service. 
 
Matt conveyed to the author that these small special districts and their corresponding 
boards do not meet as often as County Boards of Supervisors, and due to their size they 
shouldn’t have to have an annual decision made regarding their level of required 
attestation. 



 

 
Lauren asked if this bill only pertains to the new service additions, review and Agreed 
Upon Procedures (AUP) that have to reviewed and considered on an annual basis. 
 
Bob asked about the language, where it seemingly was copied incorrectly as it refers to 
the same (other) Government Code Section twice. 
 

d) AB 2691 – Monthly Property Tax Program –  
 

The Treasurer’s-Tax Collector are unglued about this bill and are very actively opposing 
its passage.  The T-TC’s and Matt have sent a white paper to the Governor’s office 
describing the many issues associated with administering this legislation, such as what 
to do with the first few months bills before the property valuations and tax roll have been 
finalized and invoiced to the property owners. 
 
Senator Morlock, perhaps the most conservative senator, told Howard Jarvis that he has 
always voted with the fiscally conservative group, but that their sponsorship of this bill 
did not make sense and that he felt the bill is very problematic. 
 
Bob mentioned that all of the costs of implementing and administering this program is 
borne by the local governments since it there is opt-out language for local Boards.  
Therefore not required and therefore not reimbursable state mandate. 
 

e) SB 1315 – Counties: Budgets –  
 

Alters the due date within the County Budget Act.  This bill originated with Orange 
County.  The bill was signed into law and now we are doing a wait and watch of how it 
progresses through implementation in Orange County. 
 
Bob asked Anita whether this new legislation should be added to the County Standards 
and Procedures.  Anita indicated it should be considered and we can address at Fall 
Conference.  



 

4. Current Legislation – List of Bills 
 

Leg. Committee Vote on Bills   Legend 
C  Concern 
D  Drop 
O  Oppose 
OUA  Oppose Unless Amended 
S  Support 
W  Watch 

 

Assembly Bills  Senate Bills 

AB No. 
SACA 

Position  SB No. 
SACA 

Position 

268 W  817 W 

567 W  974 W 

779 W  975 D 

806 W  987 W 

1556 D  996 W 

1591 W  1011 W 

1666 D  1029 W 

1676 W  1093 W 

1745 D  1188 W 

1843 W  1203 W 

1853 W  1315 W 

1856 D    

1891 W    

1919 W    

2032 S, Sponsor    
2149 W    
2243 W    

2291 W    

2440 W    

2476 W    

2492 W    

2523 D    

2613 OUA    

2618 W    
2691 O    

2693 W    

     

     

     

     

 
  



 

5. Other Business 
 

I. AB 2693 - Matt spoke about developments on the PACE program, specifically AB 
2693, which in the author’s opinion puts in safe guards for homeowners to make the 
program better.  The Treasurer-Tax Collectors are in discussions with the author. 

 
Ed mentioned a concern such as the secondary market’s participation.  Ed would 
potentially be interested in taking these assessments off the roll at year-end.  Push 
back any delinquencies to the JPA to seek collection. 

 
Lots of discussion ensued from Ed, Carol, Kim and Bob.  Bob asked whether the 
Committee would want to support or amend. 

 
II. SB 1315 - Orange County Proposal was discussed by Matt and Bob. 

 
6. Schedule of Future Meeting 

 
The next meeting is scheduled for the 2016 Fall Conference on November 2 at 8:30 am in 
Monterey. 
 

7. Adjournment 
Time: 11:43 AM 
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted by:  
 
 
 
Nathan M. Black, CPA 
Auditor-Controller 
Sutter County 



   

October 6, 2016 

To:  State Association of County Auditors 

From:  Matthew Siverling 

  Legislative Representative 

 

Subject: Final 2016 Legislative Activity Report 

This is the final Legislative Activity Report for the 2016 Legislative Session on Association legislative 

matters of interest. 

INTRODUCTION 

The Legislature adjourned shortly after midnight on the last day of Session on August 31, 2016 and 
is scheduled to convene the 2017 Regular Legislative Session on January 3, 2017.  Under the 
Constitution, the Governor had until September 30, 2016 to sign or veto bills passed by the 
Legislature in the regular session.  2016 was the second year of the two-year Legislative Session.  
This means that all actions of the Legislature and Governor are now final and there is no further 
opportunity for bills to move.  When the Legislature returns for business in January, 2017, they will 
begin with a fresh slate and brand new bills and bill numbers. 
    
During this meeting, the Association will be presented with background materials on all measures 
of interest that were discussed or acted upon by the State Association of County Auditors 
Legislative Committee in the 2016 Legislative Session.  These bills have either been held in the 
Legislature, vetoed, or signed into law by the Governor. 
 
Sponsored Bills   

Assembly Bill 2032 (Linder) Disincorporation 

The Legislative Committee discussed AB 851 (Mayes) last year and identified some issues that 
need to be addressed.  Los Angeles County was working directly with CSAC on addressing some of 
their specific concerns.  The key challenge we had is that AB 851 did not receive a “no” vote.   
 
Over the interim last year, Los Angeles and Riverside counties put together a working document to 
re-engage the interested parties in the discussion on “disincorporation.”  Specifically, the 
amendments set up a more informative and intensive process for the disincorporating entity in 
terms of disclosure and identification of existing funds, obligations, and debts.  The cities and 
CALAFCO objected to this during AB 851 and considered the exchange of information “onerous” 
on the already crumbling city.   
 
 
 



   

We approached the prior Author of AB 851, Chad Mayes, to carry the cleanup bill, but he indicated 
that since his election as the Assembly Minority Leader he wanted to focus on key priorities and 
Caucus business.  We then approached Riverside Assembly republican Eric Linder to carry.  He 
represents Jurupa Valley, which was a key city in the discussion last year. 
 
We immediately experienced some pushback from CALAFCO and CSAC who argued that these 
“disclosure” issues were addressed and hashed out last year.  Further, CSAC felt that the county-
related concerns, like that of the auditor, can be addressed through the county representative 
LAFCO process rather than overly prescribed in law. 
 
CALAFCO formed a subcommittee to review the proposed amendments and eventually objected 
to the majority of suggested amendments to the “disincorporation” law passed a year earlier.  
However, they were able to come to agreement on several aspects.   
 
First, SACA requested that the disclosure requirements contained in the disincorporation process 
include “current and long term liabilities” as well as detail on “restricted and unrestricted funds 
available to extinguish obligations and liabilities.  This will allow counties to avoid being blind-sided 
by an obligation that is due in the distant future that was not disclosed.  It also sorts the city’s 
funds into “restricted and unrestricted” categories, which will prevent monies from being spent 
for other purposes if they were previously designated for specified activities. 
 
Second, the presence of “assessments” has been amended into the law have been added to 
existing requirements to disclose a “tax levy…or other obligation due to the city that is unpaid or 
has not been collected.”  Since taxes and assessments are different, the auditors want to ensure 
that they attain all receivables related to tax bills.   
 
Lastly, a specific reference to the “Board of Supervisors” has been amended to “governing body”.  
This is critical because there are some cases where the board would not be the successor (i.e. 
special districts could provide service).   
 
The measure was eventually supported by all parties, including CALAFCO, CSAC, the League of 
Cities and SACA.  It cleared the Legislative process without a “no” vote and was subsequently 
signed into law by the Governor. 
 
Final Status:  Chapter #163, ‘16 

Other Issues 

Assembly Bill 779 (Garcia) Local government: financial disclosures. 

AB 779 would have required the reporting of identical information that is contained within 
financial transaction reports that are currently submitted to the State Controller’s Office and also 
posted on the local agency’s website.  Under current law, county auditors are required to report 
the annual compensation of a local agency’s elected officials, officers, and employees in 



   

accordance with reporting instructions developed by the Controller in consultation with affected 
local agencies.   
 
Both AB 779 and financial transaction reports required the reporting of: stipends, automobile 
allowance, technology allowance, phone allowance, pension contributions, retirement 
contributions, health premiums and other types of compensation.   The only “new” category 
added through the mandate in AB 779 is “unpaid vacation time”.   
 
AB 779 also raised strong concerns with the timing of the required reporting.  AB 779 would have 
required the reporting of the same information categories “six months following the fiscal year”, 
whereas the existing due date for the submission of financial transaction reports to the State 
Controller is April 30th; which links the required information on compensation to the due date for 
W2’s for the IRS.   
 
This bill would have created two separate due dates during the year that would require the 
reporting of the same categorical information.  Further, it is probable that the data would not have 
matched since the financial information would cover two different 12 month periods that only 
partially overlap. 
 
Local agencies strive to achieve transparency to bolster public trust in the public sector.  County 
auditors are already working diligently to post the employee compensation information required 
under Assembly Bill 2040 (Garcia, Chapter 894, ’14).  Because it was duplicative and incongruent 
with current mandates, we urged a no vote on AB 779 as it appeared in Committee. 
 
Just prior to the hearing, the Author reached out to stakeholders and offered key amendments.  
Amendments removed the compensation posting requirement for the top 10 highest 
compensated employees (leaving requirement for elected officials only), changed the due date 
and time period for the information to be in line with the date and time period when similar 
information is due to the SCO, and changed the requirements for entities (special districts) that 
don’t have a website. 
 
With those amendments accepted in Committee, the majority of opposition went neutral and the 
measure passed out of Committee.  It subsequently passed out of the Legislature and was 
presented to the Governor, who opted to veto it.    
 
In his veto message, he stated, “This bill requires local agencies to post the names and total 
compensation of elected officials on their websites. Local agencies already provide extensive 
employee compensation information, which includes the compensation for elected officials, to the 
State Controller's Office. If an agency maintains a website, it must post this information as well. 
There is no evidence that existing disclosure requirements are insufficient. Further, this bill exposes 
the General Fund to reimbursable mandate costs that it cannot afford.” 
 
 
 
 



   

Final Status: Vetoed 

Assembly Bill 2476 (Daly); Parcel Tax Notification 

AB 2476 requires a local agency to notify a property owner of an approved parcel tax following its 
successful passage if the property owner does not reside within the jurisdiction where the parcel 
tax is levied. Notification must be done by mail and local agencies may rely on the parcel tax 
revenues to recover reasonable costs associated with providing the notice.  
 
The Association worked with CSAC at the end of the year to communicate concerns to the 
Governor and urge his veto.  Specifically, there remained necessary technical clean-up despite 
identification of these issues earlier on in the legislative process. The result could at best create 
ambiguity and at worst uneven application of the new notification rules. The remaining issues 
include: 

 References to “owner of the parcel” should be changed to  “assessee” to clarify tax obligations 
and liability and conform to existing Revenue and Taxation code sections;  

 Reference to  “the legislative body” should be changed to “local agency” since the required 
administrative functions in AB 2476 do not regularly fall to a city council, board of supervisors, 
or board of directors; and 

 The definition of “parcel tax” should include that it is a special tax measure that is subject to 
voter approval; and 

 The definition of parcel tax should also be adjusted to reflect a tax that “may be” (rather than 
“is”) collected through annual property tax bill. Cities, special districts, and schools have 
authority to collect parcel taxes independently from the county in some circumstances and 
therefore the notification may not apply to all parcel taxes. 
 

However, even if these additional technical issues were addressed the coalition did not believe the 
mandated notification by local agencies and associated cost were justified. This is primarily 
because of the very public process by which parcel taxes are placed on the ballot, acted upon by 
voters, and reported out by county elections officials, regardless if ultimately approved or not. AB 
2476 calls out parcel taxes as necessitating additional notice for a certain property owners and we 
are not convinced that the steps in AB 2476 are warranted. 
 
Despite the opposition, the Governor signed the bill.  We are already looking at introducing a 
clean-up bill next year to address unresolved concerns.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

Final Status:  Chapter #269, ‘16 

Assembly Bill 2613 (Achadjian), Special District Audits/Financial Compilation  

The California Special District Association proposed to provide an alternative to existing options to 
satisfy their audit requirements under the Government Code.  Current law requires an annual 
audit, or in special cases a multi-year audit option for smaller special districts who may be able to 
limit their audit costs to once every 2-5 years.  Further, the current law allows for a “financial 
review” in lieu of an audit, which is designed to be less intrusive and more cost-effective.  
 
CSDA explained that they represent many small special districts who are still struggling to comply 
with auditing requirements, even with the 2-5 year cycle option AND even with the “financial 
review” available to them.  They are proposing allowing the county auditor to perform a “financial 
compilation” in lieu of the audit or review as well as a disclosure of internal control procedures.   
A small subcommittee worked on some alternatives to the proposed language in the bill.  A 
proposed approach to assist these smaller districts in compliance with this mandate was drafted.   
 
It provides a spectrum of options for the auditor and the district to utilize, depending on the 
characteristics of the district.  It included the potential submission of a financial transaction report 
for districts collecting less than $50,000 per year, a compilation (if appropriate), a financial review, 
agreed upon procedures, or an audit.   
 
The measure was successful in clearing Legislative process and was presented to the Governor for 
his consideration.  He promptly signed the bill into law.  
 
Final Status:  Chapter #164, ‘16 

Assembly Bill 2691 (Holden) Monthly Property Tax Program 

AB 2691 would have authorized a county board of supervisors to adopt a resolution or ordinance 
allowing certain taxpayers to pay their property tax in monthly installments.   
The Association told the Author we understand the intent of the measure and appreciate the 
Author’s efforts to assist those constituents who may be interested in a monthly property tax 
payment option, but communicated that unfortunately, the administration of this service would 
be complicated, expensive and highly specialized.  
 
This measure addressed the monthly collection of the “ad valorem” property taxes but not the 
direct assessments and voted indebtedness that also are collected through the property tax bill.  
The measure also does not address how the county auditor is expected to apportion partial 
payments for these purposes.    
 
The majority of county tax payment systems are antiquated and programmed to handle tax 
payments on the December 10th and April 10th collection dates.  Changes to this process and 
upgrades to these systems would be costly and would be funded wholly from the general fund of 
the county.    



   

We argued that there are easier, cost-free and voluntary methods that would accomplish this 
same goal for this universe of taxpayers.  Seniors could impound their tax payments into a 
separate account through their financial institution.  This would allow the funds to be available 
when the tax bill is due twice per year.  This option would serve the same purpose as AB 2691 
without putting undue costs and strains on the resources of counties, county treasurer-tax 
collectors and county auditors.   
 
Despite the challenges presented for this service, the Senate Governance and Finance Committee 
praised the bill, criticized local governments for not providing specialized services and passed the 
bill with one “no” vote.  The “no” vote came from Senator Moorlach, the former TTC of Orange 
County, who argued passionately that this proposal is “not ready for prime time.” 
   
The measure cleared the process and was presented to the Governor.  The Association met with 
the Administration and pleaded for a veto.  The Governor heard our concerns, and in his veto 
message stated “This bill authorizes a county board of supervisors to let qualified taxpayers pay 
their property taxes in monthly, rather than biannual, payments. County supervisors, tax collectors, 
and auditors across the state oppose this measure due to the significant costs to upgrade tax 
collection systems. I am not convinced that changing these current systems, many of which have 
been in place for decades, is worth the cost.” 
 
Final Status:  Vetoed 

Assembly Bill 2693 (Dababneh) Financing requirements: property improvements 

This bill provides enhanced consumer protections by requiring a public agency to provide property 
owners participating in the PACE program with a "Financing Estimate and Disclosure" document.  
This disclosure will provide much needed information to property owners regarding the financial 
terms and obligations of the PACE loan.   
 
This bill establishes uniform disclosures that must be provided to each homeowner when 
participating in a PACE program.  Under this bill, each homeowner must receive a completed 
financing estimate document, which contains products and costs, financing costs, other terms, and 
notification to the homeowner about making payments via the property tax bill, and the potential 
requirement to pay the remaining balance of the assessment upon sale or refinance.  The measure 
also provides that a property owner is given the right to cancel the PACE loan without penalty or 
obligation. 
 
Final Status:  Chaptered #618, ‘16 

 

 

 

 



   

SCA 5 (Hancock); Assembly Bill 1040 (Ting)/SB 259 (Bates); Prop 13 Amends 

Two Democratic Senators introduced an SCA with sweeping amendments to Proposition 13 with 
the stated intent to “provide tools so that local governments can raise more revenue from 
commercial and industrial properties.”  They say they introduced the bill because commercial 
property is rarely reassessed due to loopholes that prevent that trigger.  This is a loophole that 
only business can exploit.  The measure would allow for regular reassessments of offices, factories 
and other buildings, ensuring that they are taxed at closer to current market value. Currently 
they're reassessed only when there's a change in ownership. 
 
The adjustments to Prop 13 would not apply to residences or agricultural property, and there 
would be new tax breaks to help small businesses.  If approved by the Legislature, the measure 
would be placed on the ballot in November 2016.  
 
The authors say the change could raise $9 billion for schools and local governments, helping to 
“reduce classroom sizes, hire more cops and patch potholes.”  The measure would require a two-
thirds vote in the Legislature, which means it would need at least a handful of Republican votes.  
 
Assemblymember Ting’s bill seeks to reform the system by bringing together business and labor 
groups and hashing out a new definition for change in ownership. Ting said he doesn’t know what 
that definition will be: he hopes to find the “sweet spot” on a compromise. 
 
The bill is an alternative to Senate Bill 259 from Sen. Patricia Bates, which would define change in 
ownership as at least a 90 percent transfer of ownership interests. Another similar pending bill, 
Senate Constitutional Amendment 5, would revise commercial property taxes following a 
reassessment of value, not just after a change in ownership. 
 
Neither of these bills has been heard in a Committee.  Both have been referred to the Senate 
Governance and Finance Committee. We will stay tuned to determine if a hearing is scheduled 
next year. 
 
The Governor has come out publically and indicated that he will not support this effort. When he 
was governor before in 1978, Brown campaigned against Proposition 13. But he embraced it when 
the measure passed, and he has resisted efforts to alter it in recent years.  He described this effort 
as a “difficult situation that is best avoided”. 
 
Final Status:  Held in Committee  

 

 

 

 



   

Senate Bill 1011 (Mendoza) Public officers: contracts: financial interest. 

This bill provided, commencing January 1, 2018, for the purposes of Government Code Section 
1090 dealing with conflicts of interests in contracts, that a public officer with membership on any 
state or local body, board, or commission, is deemed to have a remote interest in a contract if the 
officer's child, parent, sibling, or the spouse of the child, parent, or sibling, has a financial interest 
in the contract, unless the financial interest of those other persons is not known to the public 
officer. 
 
While the bill did not have registered opposition, there were Committee concerns that the bill may 
have unintended consequences.  Specifically, while the penalty for violating the remote interest 
provisions of Section 1090 requires "willful failure" to disclose a remote interest, and while this bill 
provides that the remote interest would have to be "actually known to the public officer," it could 
be difficult for public officials to prove they were unaware of such a remote interest at the time a 
contract was approved.  Given the penalties for violating Section 1090, the Committee 
recommended to consider whether the potential merits of this bill may outweigh its potential 
unintended consequences. 
 
The measure was eventually quietly held in the Appropriations Committee suspense file. 
 
Final Status:  Held on suspense 

Senate Bill 1102 (McGuire) TOT Collection 

Senate Bill 1102 required that every collecting platform must collect, on behalf of an operator, the 
amount of any tax levied pursuant to state laws authorizing local transient occupancy taxes on 
every rental transaction that is facilitated by a collecting platform for a residential unit that is 
offered for occupancy for tourist or transient use for compensation to the operator.  This 
collection obligation would have begun on July 1, 2017.  A collecting platform would not be 
required to collect tax if a unit is located within a collecting jurisdiction.  SB 1102 required a 
collecting platform to remit the amount to the city, county, or city and county that levied the tax 
pursuant to applicable requirements of local ordinances governing the tax. 
 
This measure was a follow up to last year’s Senate Bill 593 (McGuire), which failed to move to the 
Floor for a vote due to immense opposition from AirBnB and similar businesses.  This measure is 
more of a compromise than the last effort.  The prior bill died as a result of “too many privacy 
concerns” and the disclosure of information related to rentals to the public.  This bill protects the 
information related to the owner of the property and prohibits the release of personal 
information.   
 
The measure cleared the Senate Governance and Finance Committee as a “work in progress” with 
no opposition, but during the last hearing in the Senate Appropriations Committee, the bill took on 
opposition from the League of Cities and the Treasurers, who are concerned that the lack of 
information released pursuant the bill will hamper efforts to administer quality audits.   



   

The bill was sent to the suspense file and was held there. Local agreements continue to be the only 
regulations in place to collect TOT from this business model.  
 
 
Senate Bill 1315 (Bates) Counties: Budgets 

Orange County is sponsoring this bill to allow the Board to skip the statutory step of adopting a 
“recommended budget” prior to June 30th if they have already moved forward to adopt their final 
approved budget.  Orange County claims that they have, for years, been required to take an 
“unnecessary step” to approve their recommended budget as a “stutter step” to adopting their 
final approved budget in the next meeting.  They consider it a waste of resources and time. 
 
CSAC has polled some of their members and have not found any counties who have an issue with 
Orange County, or whomever wants to do it this way, skipping the recommended budget draft.  All 
of the counties polled indicated that they’d continue to adopt a recommended Budget in June to 
allow for accurate adjustments due to summer budget data arriving after 6/30, but didn’t seem 
willing to tell another county that they had to do something they didn’t feel necessary. 
 
Since our last meeting, CSAC and the UCC have signed on in SUPPORT of this bill alongside Orange 
County.  The analysis and the testimony of the OC lobbyist during the Senate Governance and 
Finance Committee clarified that the approach is “optional” for counties who wish to use it, and 
that the current law regarding County Budgets is not being taken away.  Further, I was provided a 
link to a prior OC BOS meeting where this idea took shape.  It was rooted in a discomfort by one or 
several of the members in “approving” a recommended Budget without knowing what was “in it.”  
Their Budget process gears up in June, and they typically approve the recommended Budget in 
May.  Apparently the member felt there was damage that could be done to elected officials who 
blindly approve the budget and then come back for official Budget discussions in the next month 
to determine what they’d already “approved.” 
 
The measure cleared the Legislative process and was signed into law by the Governor.   
 
Final Status:  Chapter #56, ‘16 

 

Legal Opinion on Board of Supervisors/Elected Officials 

The Association worked with the California Association of County Treasurers and Tax Collectors to 
obtain an independent legal opinion regarding the authority of Boards of Supervisors over locally 
elected officials.  We were approached by the Treasurers during our Annual Conference in Lake 
Tahoe with the proposed opinion request to mitigate some local issues that had been disputed 
over the years. 
 
 



   

The “short answer” that the legal opinion offered indicated that the authority of the Board is 
limited to “such oversight and action as is necessary to ensure that (these offices) are faithfully 
performing the duties of their respective offices.”  The counsel did not find legal authority to 
“influence, interfere with or impact the management of these officers and their respective 
offices.” 
 
The Associations may find the opinion helpful in future disagreements over this issue.   
 
 
Court Employees/CalPERS Issue 

The Association has chosen to move forward to participate in a coalition with the California 
Association of Counties (CSAC) and the counties of Solano and Placer to approach the key decision 
makers in the State and address the longstanding issue of separating out pension assets and 
related unfunded liabilities from the State Courts.  This remaining relic of the State/county court 
shift has been an unresolved issue for over a decade.   
 
It was determined early on that the appropriate path for addressing this issue was going to be in 
the Administration, not the Legislative process.  We’ve met with the Department of Finance and 
laid out the issues for them to consider.  The Department has continued to reach out for 
clarification and follow up questions over the last few weeks, so we are encouraged that this issue 
has found a toe-hold for the time being and is part of an ongoing discussion. 
 
We continue to encourage all affected counties to reach out and communicate the importance of 
addressing this faulty relationship between court employees and counties.  At the very least, an 
avenue to providing the auditors with adequate tools to split these employees from the pension 
and benefit obligations would be a step in the right direction.   
 
The key update to this proposal was a very troubling opinion voiced by the DOF that their stance 
regarding court employees is that they should NOT be removed from the county obligations for 
reporting purposes and should be lumped in with all other county liabilities.  This is a completely 
contrary position to that of CSAC and SACA, so we have some discussions in our future to determine 
which avenue the State will take. 
 
 
Statistics 

The Governor had until September 30, 2016 to sign or veto bills.   

The final outcome after a month of bill signings was 1,059 measures signed into law against 159 

measures vetoed.  The 15% veto rate is rather high for this Governor.  

 



               Orange County Auditor-Controller Legislative Proposals   June 2016 Page 1 

 

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER LEGISLATIVE PACKAGE 

INTRODUCTION: 

The elected Orange County Auditor-Controller, Eric H. Woolery, proposes this 

legislative package to strengthen the independence of elected auditor-controllers.  

These proposals arise out of disputes that Mr. Woolery has encountered since he took 

office on January 5, 2015.   Whenever Mr. Woolery asserted his duty to question payments that 

personally benefitted member of the county board of supervisors, they responded by threatening 

to break up the office, slash the budget, and seek criminal charges.  

On one occasion, a member of the board of supervisors sought to rejoin the county 

pension plan five years after he had signed an irrevocable agreement not to take the pension. He 

and the pension plan demanded that the county pay his pension contribution retroactively. When 

Mr. Woolery questioned the legality of this payment, the county counsel (working for the board) 

told him he had a ministerial duty to make the payments, regardless of their legality, and that if 

he did not make the payments, he would be subject to criminal charges of embezzlement under 

Penal Code §484.   

More recently, Mr. Woolery discovered that two county supervisors, both on the June 

2016 ballot,  were spending over $100,000 of county money to do mass mailings for events 

which featured the supervisors, seemingly in violation of the mass mailing law (Govt.  C. 

§89001).  Their expenditures coincided with the election calendar. Mr. Woolery held up payment 

for the mailers. Once again, he received the same threats of criminal charges and the 

dismantlement of his office. 

County counsel is hired by the board of supervisors and, as a practical matter, is beholden 

to the supervisors. Mr. Woolery asked for independent counsel, but that request was denied.  

These actions demonstrate the need for legislation that will allow elected auditor-

controllers to make independent financial decisions as required by the Government Code, free 

from political pressure, free from threats, and free from personal liability. Auditor-controllers 

need legal advice from sources that are not beholden to the Board of Supervisors.  The current 

law is a Catch 22 – auditor-controllers face criminal charges if they do not make payments, and 

possible personal liability if they do make payments.  

 This package contains five sets of proposals: 

 PROPOSAL NO. 1 – Hiring Independent Counsel and Staff 

 PROPOSAL NO. 2 – Ability to Make Decisions Without Personal Liability 

 PROPOSAL NO. 3 – Codifying the Independence of the Auditor-Controller 

 PROPOSAL NO. 4 – Investigatory Powers 

 PROPOSAL NO. 5 – Protecting the Integrity of the Position 



               Orange County Auditor-Controller Legislative Proposals   June 2016 Page 2 

 

PROPOSAL NO. 1: THE RIGHT OF THE AUDITOR TO HIRE INDEPENDENT 

COUNSEL AND STAFF 

 [NOTE:  For each proposal, the current text of the statutes appears in regular font. 

Proposed additions are italicized and in bold. Proposed deletions of existing text are in 

brackets in bold.] 

 EXPLANATION:  

        The provisions setting forth the duties and attributes of the office of county auditor begin 

at Government Code §26900. They are labeled as Chapter 4 and contain four articles. The 

auditor is ex officio the county controller as well (Govt. C. §26880). 

  This amendment would add Article 5 to Chapter 4, to clarify and expand the 

independence of the elected county auditor. The auditor needs independent counsel to advise on 

matters, particularly affecting the board of supervisors. This amendment would establish that the 

auditor can use his budget to retain independent counsel.  

The auditor also needs independent executive assistants without the board of supervisors 

being able to veto any particular appointment. In Orange County, the board of supervisors has 

actively interfered with the hiring of executive assistants by the auditor-controller.  

 

 Article 5 is added to Chapter 4 ("Auditor") of Part 3 ("Other Officers") of Division 

2 ("Officers") of Title 3 ("Government of Counties") of the Government Code to read:  

  "Article 5. Personnel of the Auditor. 

 Section 26950 - Notwithstanding sections 26520 through 26529 of this Code, an elected 

county auditor shall have the authority to retain counsel, out of his or her budget, to advise on 

the legality of any matter upon which the elected county auditor is requested to act or which 

falls within his or her duties.  

 Section 26951 - When the claim or charge pertains to a claim or charge involving the 

personal benefit or charge of a county elected official, an elected county auditor shall retain 

counsel to determine the legality of any such requested claim or charge. 

 Section 26952 -  An elected county auditor shall have the authority to hire one or more 

executive assistants of  his or her choosing, up to the highest pay rate allowed for executive 

assistants. Such executive assistants shall serve at the pleasure of the elected county auditor.  

The appointments shall be made in the same manner prescribed in Section 24102 of this Code. 



               Orange County Auditor-Controller Legislative Proposals   June 2016 Page 3 

 

PROPOSAL NO. 2.  ALLOWING THE AUDITOR-CONTROLLER TO MAKE 

DECISIONS WITHOUT THREAT OF PERSONAL LIABILITY  

 This proposal consists of four statutes to be amended or added, to clarify that a county 

auditor-controller can make decisions without exposure to personal liability or criminal liability, 

and that if the auditor-controller is sued for a decision regarding payment, the county will 

indemnify the auditor-controller.  It also clarifies that Penal Code §424 cannot be invoked on 

policy disputes until after there has been a final court decision on any dispute. Disputes over 

policy should be resolved in the civil courts, not in the criminal courts. 

 

Part 1 - Government Code §24054 is amended to read: 

"Any officer authorizing, aiding to authorize, auditing, allowing, or paying any claim or 

demand upon or against the treasury of any county, or any fund thereof, in violation of law or of 

the constitution is liable personally and upon his official bond to the person damaged by such 

illegal action, to the extent of his loss by reason of the nonpayment of his claim.  This section 

does not apply to any person holding an elected position of auditor-controller making a 

decision in the course and scope of his or her duties. " 

EXPLANATION: The proposed amendment to Govt. C. §24054 clarifies that elected auditor-

controllers are not personally liable for decisions they make regarding claims or demands.  

Auditor-controllers should not be subject to personal liability for making the decisions for which 

they were elected.  This part, and the remaining parts of this proposal, are intended to allow 

auditor-controllers to make decisions, for which there may be disagreement, without subjecting 

them to personal liability or criminal liability.  

Part 2 - Government Code §26881.5 is added to read:  

"If illegal claims or charges are made, the county auditor-controller shall refuse to 

draw warrants for them. This section applies whether or not the auditor-controller's role is 

defined as ministerial or discretionary, consistent with section 23006 of this Code, and 

includes any transfers, including but not limited to those described in section 31582 of this 

Code. This statute is intended to codify existing state law.  The auditor-controller shall draw 

warrants if a court orders payment and the order has become effective as a final order or 

pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 1110b.  "  

EXPLANATION: The proposed addition of Govt. C. §26881.5 would codify case law that says 

that if illegal claims are presented, it is the duty of the auditor-controller to refuse to pay them, 

even if the claims were approved by the Board of Supervisors. If the auditor-controller 

determines that a payment would be ultra vires or would be an illegal payment, the auditor-

controller shall refuse to make the payment, subject to judicial review.  City of El Cajon v.  

Lonergan (1978) 83 Cal.App.3d 672, 677-678; Board of Supervisors v Phillips (1963) 212 

Cal.App.2d 815; Biggart v. Lewis (1920) 183 Cal. 660; Walton v. McPhetridge (1898) 120 Cal. 

440, 444.  The reference to §31582 is to clarify that this provision applies to pension payments.  

 



               Orange County Auditor-Controller Legislative Proposals   June 2016 Page 4 

 

Part 3 - Government Code § 29611 is amended to read: 

"The necessary expenses, incurred by the auditor and treasurer in the defense and 

prosecution of any action brought by or against them to test the validity or constitutionality of 

any act of the Legislature or of the board of supervisors or of any order providing for the 

payment of any funds held in the county treasury or based upon any decision to pay or not pay a 

claim or charge are county charges." 

EXPLANATION: The proposed amendment to Government Code §29611 clarifies that if the 

auditor or treasurer makes a decision to pay or not pay a claim or charge, and the auditor or the 

treasurer is sued as a result, the county will pay the defense expenses incurred by the auditor or 

treasurer.  

 

Part 4 – Penal Code §424 is amended to read: 

“(a) Each officer of this state, or of any county, city, town, or district of this state, and every 

other person charged with the receipt, safekeeping, transfer, or disbursement of public moneys, 

who either: 

1. Without authority of law, appropriates the same, or any portion thereof, to his or her 

own use, or to the use of another; or, 

2. Loans the same or any portion thereof; makes any profit out of, or uses the same for 

any purpose not authorized by law; or, 

3. Knowingly keeps any false account, or makes any false entry or erasure in any account 

of or relating to the same; or, 

4. Fraudulently alters, falsifies, conceals, destroys, or obliterates any account; or, 

5. Willfully refuses or omits to pay over, on demand, any public moneys in his or her  

hands, upon the presentation of a draft, order, or warrant drawn upon these moneys by competent 

authority; or, 

6. Willfully omits to transfer the same, when transfer is required by law; or, 

7. Willfully omits or refuses to pay over to any officer or person authorized by law to 

receive the same, any money received by him or her under any duty imposed by law so to pay 

over the same;-- 

Is punishable by imprisonment in the state prison for two, three, or four years, and is 

disqualified from holding any office in this state. 

 (b) As used in this section, “public moneys” includes the proceeds derived from the sale of 

bonds or other evidence or indebtedness authorized by the legislative body of any city, county, 

district, or public agency. 



               Orange County Auditor-Controller Legislative Proposals   June 2016 Page 5 

 

(c) This section does not apply to the incidental and minimal use of public resources authorized 

by Section 8314 of the Government Code. 

(d) Subsections (a)(5),(6),and (7) of this section are only punishable as a crime if a court has 

filed an order in a civil proceeding that the officer or other person has a duty to perform the 

act therein, and the officer or other person still refuses to perform the act therein after the 

order has become effective as a final order or pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 

1110b. This subsection is intended to require the invocation of a civil remedy for alleged 

unauthorized expenditures or refusal to make expenditures by public officials as a prerequisite 

for any public body seeking to impose criminal sanctions.”  

 

EXPLANATION: Subsections (a)(5)(6) and (7) of Penal Code §424 criminalize a “willful” 

refusal to pay public moneys upon the presentation of a draft, order, or warrant drawn upon these 

moneys by competent authority, or refusal to transfer public moneys, or to pay moneys under a 

duty.   

This statute has been invoked as a threat when the auditor-controller disagrees with a board 

member. Policymakers may have a legitimate dispute over what is “willful” and what is a proper 

refusal to pay money. Under current law, there is no prerequisite to seek a civil resolution of any 

such dispute. 

The proposed subsection (d) would require that there be a civil court resolution before a public 

official be subjected to criminal charges for refusing to pay public funds where the public official 

believes he or she should not pay the funds. The proposal is intended to address the case of Stark 

v. Superior Court (2011) 52 Cal. 4th 368.  

In Stark, the elected county auditor-controller, who had held office since 1985, had several 

policy and performance disputes with the county administrative officer, an appointee of the 

board of supervisors. In 2005, the county grand jury returned a criminal indictment against Stark 

for his refusal to pay certain moneys. The indictment included several counts under Penal Code 

§424. Stark raised several legal objections in a motion to dismiss.  In the meantime, Stark was 

reelected in 2006 and 2010. In 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld the legality of the 

charges.   

The charges were still pending when Stark announced in 2013 he would not seek a new four-year 

term.  Two weeks later, the charges were dismissed.  (See  http://www.appeal-

democrat.com/charges-against-sutter-county-auditor-controller-dismissed/article_ 5f7372d6-

aa40-5359-9582-cac6f0b8896c.html?mode=jqm). 

The court in Stark acknowledged the difficulties of criminalizing official behavior. At page 397, 

the court said “Section 424, however, is an unusual statute, in which the definition of some of the 

offenses incorporates a legal element derived from other noncriminal legal provisions. Each of 

the three provisions at issue refers to ‘law’ or ‘legal duty’. These references are ‘shorthand’, used 

to encompass the wide variety of requirements relating to the official’s duties.”  

http://www.appeal-democrat.com/charges-against-sutter-county-auditor-controller-dismissed/article_
http://www.appeal-democrat.com/charges-against-sutter-county-auditor-controller-dismissed/article_


               Orange County Auditor-Controller Legislative Proposals   June 2016 Page 6 

 

 The problem here is that the auditor-controller should not be subjected to the threat of 

criminal liability every time his view of what his “legal duty” is differs from that of the county 

board of supervisors and its county counsel. This is particularly true when (1) the issue pertains 

to the personal benefit of individual members of the board of supervisors, and (2) the board of 

supervisors has refused to allow the auditor-controller to hire independent legal counsel to gauge 

his legal duty.   

The proper way to resolve these kinds of disputes is to allow the auditor-controller to 

have his own counsel, and to resort to the remedies of declaratory relief or writ of mandate to 

determine if a payment is proper, rather than putting the auditor-controller’s liberty or retention 

of office at stake every time there is a clash of views.  That is what this proposed amendment 

would accomplish.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



               Orange County Auditor-Controller Legislative Proposals   June 2016 Page 7 

 

PROPOSAL NO. 3    CODIFYING THE INDEPENDENCE OF THE AUDITOR-

CONTROLLER 

 EXPLANATION: This amendment clarifies that an elected county auditor-controller is 

an independent county officer on a par with the sheriff and district attorney. It amends a basic 

county governance statute. 

 

  Government Code §25303 is amended to read:  

 "The board of supervisors shall supervise the official conduct of all county officers, and 

officers of all districts and other subdivisions of the county, and particularly insofar as the 

functions and duties of such county officers and officers of all districts and subdivisions of the 

county relate to the assessing, collecting, safekeeping, management, or disbursement of public 

funds. It shall see that they faithfully perform their duties, direct prosecutions for delinquencies, 

and when necessary, require them to renew their official bond, make reports and present their 

books and accounts for inspection. 

 "This section shall not be construed to affect the independent and constitutionally and 

statutorily designated investigative and prosecutorial functions of the sheriff [add comma] [and] 

district attorney, and the auditor-controller of a county. The board of supervisors shall not 

obstruct the investigative function of the sheriff of the county nor shall it obstruct the 

investigative and prosecutorial function of the district attorney of a county, nor the auditing and 

controller function of the auditor-controller. 

 

 "Nothing contained herein shall be construed to limit the budgetary authority of the board 

of supervisors over the district attorney or sheriff or the auditor-controller." 

  



               Orange County Auditor-Controller Legislative Proposals   June 2016 Page 8 

 

PROPOSAL NO. 4. INVESTIGATORY POWERS FOR THE AUDITOR-CONTROLLER 

 EXPLANATION: This proposal would increase the investigatory power of the auditor-

controller position by providing it with subpoena power. This proposal is modeled after statutes 

giving subpoena powers to county boards of supervisors and city councils.  It would allow the 

auditor-controller to obtain documents necessary to make determinations whether to pay 

requested expenditures  

The proposal provides that if a person refuses to cooperate, the auditor-controller can go 

to court to compel compliance. It also provides that the auditor-controller can refuse to make a 

payment if there is a failure of compliance.  This addresses the fact pattern that the Orange 

County Auditor-Controller faced in 2015 when he was requested to make a large retroactive 

pension payment for a member of the board of supervisors, and neither the supervisor nor the 

pension board would provide the documentation necessary to make the decision.  

 Proposal No. 1, above, adds an Article 5. This proposal would add an Article 6.  

Article 6 is added to Chapter 4 ("Auditor") of Part 3 ("Other Officers") of Division 2 

("Officers") of Title 3 ("Government of Counties") of the Government Code to read: 

"Article 6. Investigatory Power 

 26960 - The auditor may issue subpoenas requiring attendance of witnesses or 

production of books or other documents for evidence or testimony in any matter in which 

the auditor is requested to approve a claim, warrant, or payment, or as part of an audit 

being action or proceeding pending before him or her.  The subpoena shall state whether 

the subpoena is a proceeding for the determination of a payment requested of the auditor, 

or a proceeding in which the auditor is conducting an audit, or for another purpose. 

Nothing herein requires the auditor to disclose the substance of any audit. 

 26961 - Subpoenas shall be signed by the auditor and attested by the county clerk-

recorder. The obligation of the county clerk-recorder is mandatory. They may be served as 

subpoenas are served in civil actions.  

 26962 - If any person duly subpoenaed neglects or refuses to obey a subpoena, or, 

appearing, refuses to testify or answer any questions which the auditor decides are proper 

and pertinent, the auditor shall report the fact to the judge of the superior court of the 

county.  

 26963 - The judge shall issue an attachment directed to the sheriff of the county 

where the witness was required to appear, commanding him or her to attach the person, 

and forthwith bring him before the judge.  

 26964 - On return of the attachment and production of the witness, the judge has 

jurisdiction.  



               Orange County Auditor-Controller Legislative Proposals   June 2016 Page 9 

 

 26965 - The right of a witness to purge himself of the contempt and the proceedings, 

penalties, and punishment shall be the same as if the contempt had been committed in a 

civil trial in a superior court.  

 26966 - Should the subpoena be intended for the purpose of determining whether a 

claim or charge should be paid by the county, and the subpoena has been directed to the 

claimant or the person to whom the charge would be paid, the auditor shall have the 

discretion to refuse to authorize payment of the claim or charge until the witness or 

documents have been produced pursuant to the subpoena, unless a judge of the superior 

court rules otherwise." 

  

  



               Orange County Auditor-Controller Legislative Proposals   June 2016 Page 10 

 

PROPOSAL NO. 5 – PROTECTING THE INTEGRITY OF THE POSITION OF 

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER 

 

 The parts in this proposal seek to protect elected auditor-controllers from being 

threatened by a board of supervisors with a dismantling of the auditor-controller’s office.  

 

Part 1 - Government Code §24300 is amended to read:  

 

 “By ordinance the board of supervisors may consolidate the duties of certain of the 

county offices in one or more of these combinations: 

 

(a) Sheriff and tax collector. 

(b) Auditor and recorder. 

(c) County clerk, auditor, and recorder. 

(d) County clerk and public administrator. 

(e) County clerk and recorder. 

(f) County clerk and auditor. 

(g) Treasurer and tax collector. 

(h) Treasurer and recorder. 

(i) Treasurer and assessor. 

(j) Treasurer and public administrator. 

(k) Public administrator and coroner. 

(l) District attorney and public administrator. 

(m) District attorney and coroner. 

(n) Sheriff and coroner. 

(o) Sheriff and public administrator. 

(p) County agricultural commissioner and county sealer of weights and measures. 

(q) Road commissioner and surveyor. A county may create an office entitled public 

works director, combining the duties of road commissioner and surveyor and any other 

compatible duties not legally required to be performed by another county officer. 

(r) County surveyor and director of transportation. 

 

By the ordinance that consolidates the duties of the appointive county offices described in 

subdivision (p), notwithstanding Section 2122 and Sections 2181 to 2187, inclusive, of the Food 

and Agricultural Code, and Sections 12200 and 12214 of the Business and Professions Code,   

the board of supervisors may provide that the first term only of the newly consolidated office 

expires when the first of the remaining unexpired terms of the two unconsolidated offices would 

have expired. Where a vacancy in either of the unconsolidated offices exists the term of office of 

the newly consolidated office shall be the longer of the remaining unexpired terms. 

 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, any office listed in this section which is 

elected by the people, or consolidated with an office that is elected by the people, may only be 

consolidated through an election in the manner set forth in Government Code section 24009, 

subsection (b).”  

  



               Orange County Auditor-Controller Legislative Proposals   June 2016 Page 11 

 

 EXPLANATION: 

 

Current section 24300 provides that a county board of supervisors can consolidate one or 

more offices, as listed.  Some of these offices are elected positions. The effect of some 

consolidations might be to consolidate two elected positions into one, thereby depriving the 

voters of the opportunity to elect the officers separately.  

 

Separately, section 24009(a) provides which county offices are to be elected. Section 

24009(b) provides that an office can be changed from elective to appointive only if the proposal 

is submitted to the voters of the county and approved by them.  

 

As currently written, Section 24300 could allow the county board of supervisors to 

circumvent Section 24009(b) by consolidating elected positions instead of submitting their 

elimination to the voters. This amendment would prevent this by requiring that for any 

consolidation that would eliminate an elected position, the proposed consolidation must be 

submitted to the voters as well.  

 

 

Part 2.  Government Code §24300.5 is amended to read: 

 

“In addition to the duties of the county offices which may be consolidated under the 

provisions of Section 24300, the board of supervisors may by ordinance consolidate the offices 

of auditor, controller, treasurer, tax collector, and director of finance. However, no county may 

consolidate the elected office of auditor-controller with any other office except through an 

election in the manner set forth in Government Code section 24009, subsection (b).” 
 

EXPLANATION: This proposed amendment is another means of preventing a county 

board of supervisors from subverting the elected auditor-controller by unilaterally consolidating 

the position with other county positions.  

 

 



Support letter for Legislation 
 
I strongly support the attached proposed legislation which will give elected Auditor-Controllers the 
authority to retain independent legal counsel when the Auditor-Controller, County Counsel and/or the 
Board of Supervisors disagree. In Monterey, we recently had a serious situation where County Counsel 
pressured my staff to make inappropriate, possibly illegal, disbursements.  This action posed a serious 
threat to our internal controls.  
 
There is an inherent conflict-of-interest between the Board of Supervisors, who hires the County 
Counsel and the Auditor-Controller.  The County Counsel cannot serve two clients, consequently the 
client that has control over his job gets the highest priority.   
 
The legislation codifies the independence of the Auditor-Controller, on a par with the Sheriff and District 
Attorney.  This is an important distinction as the Auditor-Controller provides an important separation of 
powers in a system of checks and balances that is a hallmark of our democracy. 
 
In his role as the independent manager of the taxpayer’s dollars, the Auditor-Controller must also have 
full investigatory subpoena powers in order to obtain the necessary documents to make an informed 
decision on expenditures.  
 
Finally, the legislation protects the Auditor-Controller from retaliation by the Board of Supervisors, and 
the threat of personal liability. 
 
This legislation is long overdue and should be implemented immediately. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Michael J. Miller, CPA, CISA 
Auditor-Controller, Monterey County  
 
 



County
Has your county issued 

Pension Obligation Bonds?

If not, are you planning to 
issue POBs in the near 

future?

When you issued the 
Pension Obligation Bonds, 

did the size include the 
Court’s liability?

In implementing GASB 
#68, are you including the 

Court’s Liability on the 
County’s financial 

statements?

1937 Act 
County or 
CalPERS?

1

 ALPINE COUNTY NO NO N/A

 YES, BUT ONLY BECAUSE 
THE AMOUNT WAS LESS 
THAN .005 OF THE TOTAL 
LIABILITY AND WOULD 
HAVE RESULTED IN A LOT 
OF EXTRA WORK AND WE 
WOULD HAVE TO TRACK 
THE BALANCES GOING 

CALPERS 
COST 
SHARING 
PLAN FOR 
BOTH MISC 
AND SAFETY

2 Alameda Yes, will be paid off in 2019 No Yes Yes 1937 Act
3 Amador No No N/A No CalPERS

4

Calaveras No No N/A

No.  We reduced our 
liability amount by that of 
the courts by calculating 
the courts portion from the 
data we received from 
CalPERS.

CalPERS

5

Colusa

Yes.  We have only issued 
POB’s for the Safety Side 
Fund, which eliminated 
that financial obligation to 
PERS.

Nothing planned. No; the Courts do not have 
PERS “safety” employees.

No CalPERS

6 Contra Costa Yes N/a Yes No 1937 Act
7 El Dorado No No N/A No CalPERS

8
Fresno Yes N/A Yes.  The liabilities were co-

mingled at that time.
No 1937 Act

9 Glenn No No N/A No CalPERS
10 Humboldt No No N/A No CalPERS

11
Imperial Yes we have issued two 

pension obligation bonds.
N/A Yes No 1937 Act

12
Kern Yes N/A Yes No, Courts has its own 

liability provided by KCERA
1937 Act

13

Kings Yes Yes

Yes.  We were not able to 
remove Courts employees.  
Their liability is in our 
statements.

CalPERS

14 Lake No No N/A No CalPERS
15 Lassen No No current plans N/A Yes, but noted CalPERS
16 Los Angeles Yes No Yes No 1937 Act
17 Mariposa No No N/A No CalPERS
18 Mendocino Yes N/a Yes No 1937 Act
19 Merced Yes, will be paid off in 2016 N/A Yes No 1937 Act
20 Modoc NO NO N/A NO CalPERS
21 Mono No No N/A No CalPERS
22 MONTEREY NO NO N/A NO CalPERS

23

Napa No No N/A

No.  We separated out.  We 
only record the County’s 
portion of the liability so if 
you add the County, Courts 
and our Fair Commission 
you will get the plan totals.

CalPERS

24

Nevada No No N/A

No (they have a sub-
account with in our 
CalPERS account which I 
used the data to net out 
their portion).

CalPERS

25 PLACER NO NO N/A NO CalPERS
26 PLUMAS NO NO N/A NO CalPERS
27 Sacramento Yes N/A Yes No 1937 Act
28 San Benito No No N/A Yes CalPERS

California Counties
Survey on Pension Obligation Bonds (POBs) and Courts

March 2016



County
Has your county issued 

Pension Obligation Bonds?

If not, are you planning to 
issue POBs in the near 

future?

When you issued the 
Pension Obligation Bonds, 

did the size include the 
Court’s liability?

In implementing GASB 
#68, are you including the 

Court’s Liability on the 
County’s financial 

statements?

1937 Act 
County or 
CalPERS?

California Counties
Survey on Pension Obligation Bonds (POBs) and Courts

March 2016

29 San Diego Yes N/A Yes No 1937 Act
30 San Joaquin No No N/A No 1937 Act

31

San Luis Obispo Yes - 2003 No  Yes - Courts contribute each 
year to POB debt service.

Yes, include total POB on 
Counties FS - courts are 5.7% 
of total pension, other 
agencies 1.7%, County is 
remainder.   SLO Court 
employees still participate in 
County plan, including new 
employees

Independent 
Plan - acts 
like 1937 Act

32 San Mateo No No N/A No 1937 Act
33 Santa Barbara No No current plans N/A No 1937 Act
34 Santa Clara Yes N/A Yes Yes CalPERS

35

Santa Cruz No No n/a

Yes.  We were not able to 
remove Courts employees.  
Their liability is in our 
statements.

CalPERS

36 SHASTA No No N/A No CalPERS
37 Sierra yes N/A Yes No CalPERS

38

Siskiyou Yes N/A Yes

No – We attempted to 
extract the data as best we 
could so as to not 
overinflate our liability.

CalPERS

39 Solano Yes

Maybe - would like to have 
the Court separation issue 
finalized first. No

No CalPERS

40

Sonoma Yes.  In 2003 and 2010. No
Yes.  The Courts did 
participate in the 2003 POB 
issuance.    

No.  We did not include 
them in our County analysis 
for GASB 68 because they 
are considered as one of 
the 3 employers of SCERA.

 1937

41
Stanislaus Yes. Paid off our POB - 

September 2014
Not that I am aware of No No 1937 Act

42
Sutter No Not at present N/A

No, we used a method to 
segregate

CalPERS

43

Tehama

No No N/A

No.  WE TRIED INTERNALLY 
TO SEPARATE THEM BASED 
ON # OF EMPLOYEES CalPERS

44 Trinity Yes No Yes No CalPERS
45 Tulare Yes, now paid off.   No more! Yes No 1937 Act

46
Tuolumne Yes- Safety Side Fund; 

doesn’t affect Courts
N/A No No CalPERS

47 Ventura No No current plans N/A Yes 1937 Act
48 Yolo No No N/A No CalPERS

49
Yuba No No N/A

No.  We are excluding the 
courts from the county’s 
disclosure

CalPERS

50 Butte
51 Del Norte
52 Inyo
53 Madera
54 Marin
55 Orange
56 Riverside
57 San Bernardino
58 San Francisco



County
Has your county issued 

Pension Obligation Bonds?

If not, are you planning to 
issue POBs in the near 

future?

When you issued the 
Pension Obligation Bonds, 

did the size include the 
Court’s liability?

In implementing GASB 
#68, are you including the 

Court’s Liability on the 
County’s financial 

statements?

1937 Act 
County or 
CalPERS?

California Counties
Survey on Pension Obligation Bonds (POBs) and Courts

March 2016

Summary:
All Counties

Yes 22 1 18 9 31 CALPERS
No 27 48 4 40 18 37Act

N/A 27
49 49 49 49 49

Of the 37 Act Counties:
Yes 14 13 3
No 4 4 1 15

N/A 14 4
18 18 18 18

Of the CalPERS Counties:
Yes 8 5 6
No 23 23 3 25

N/A 8 23
31 31 31 31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2016 State Controller’s Conference 

with County Auditors 
 

 

 

 

 

 

2016 Legislation of Interest  

to County Auditors 

State Association of County Auditors 

Legislative Committee 
 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

 

 

Contents 
Bills Tracked by the SACA Legislative Committee ....................................................................................................3 

AB 806: (Dodd D) Community development: economic opportunity ....................................................................3 

AB 1666: (Brough R) Community facilities districts: reports. .................................................................................4 

AB 1676: (Campos D) Employers: wage discrimination. ........................................................................................5 

AB 1843: (Stone, Mark D) Applicants for employment: criminal history. ..............................................................6 

AB 1856: (Dababneh D) Excise taxes: claim for refund: timely filed claims. ..........................................................7 

AB 1891: (Dababneh D) School districts: special taxes: exemptions. ....................................................................8 

AB 1919: (Quirk D) Local transportation authorities: bonds. .................................................................................9 

AB 2032: (Linder R) Change of organization: cities: disincorporation. ................................................................ 10 

AB 2291: (Achadjian R) Property taxes: delinquent taxes: partial payment: fee. ............................................... 11 

AB 2476: (Daly D) Local governments: parcel taxes: notice. ............................................................................... 12 

AB 2492: (Alejo D) Community revitalization. ..................................................................................................... 13 

AB 2613: (Achadjian R) County auditor: audits: special districts. ....................................................................... 14 

AB 2618: (Nazarian D) Community facilities districts: powers. ........................................................................... 15 

AB 2693: (Dababneh D) Financing requirements: property improvements. ...................................................... 16 

SB 974: (Committee on Governance and Finance) Local government: omnibus. ............................................... 17 

SB 975: (Committee on Governance and Finance) Tax increment: property tax override rates. ....................... 18 

SB 996: (Hill D) Property taxation: welfare exemption. ...................................................................................... 19 

SB 1029: (Hertzberg D) California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission: accountability reports. ........... 20 

SB 1203: (Hertzberg D) Retirement systems: joint powers authorities: benefit formulas. ................................ 21 

SB 1315: (Bates R) Counties: budgets. ................................................................................................................ 22 

Court Bills ................................................................................................................................................................ 23 

SB 837: (Committee on Budget and Fiscal Review) State government............................................................... 23 

SB 867: (Roth D) Emergency medical services. ................................................................................................... 25 

SB 1054: (Pavley D) Restitution orders: collection. ............................................................................................. 26 

 

 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 3 of 26 

Bills Tracked by the SACA Legislative Committee 
 

AB 806: (Dodd D) Community development: economic opportunity. 

Chapter Number: 503 

Status: 9/23/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 503, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Under current law, before certain city, county, or city and county property is sold or leased for 

economic development purposes, approval of the sale or lease by the legislative body by resolution, after a 

public hearing, is required. Current law requires that resolution to contain a finding that the sale or lease of the 

property will assist in the creation of economic opportunity, as defined. This bill would recast these provisions to 

instead authorize a city, county, or city and county, with the approval of its legislative body by resolution after a 

public hearing, to acquire, sell, or lease property in furtherance of the creation of an economic opportunity, as 

defined.  

Summary: Under existing law, before certain city, county, or city and county property is sold or leased for 

economic development purposes, approval of the sale or lease by the legislative body by resolution, after a 

public hearing, is required. Existing law requires that resolution to contain a finding that the sale or lease of the 

property will assist in the creation of economic opportunity, as defined. This bill would recast these provisions to 

instead authorize a city, county, or city and county, with the approval of its legislative body by resolution after a 

public hearing, to acquire, sell, or lease property in furtherance of the creation of an economic opportunity, as 

defined. The bill would require the resolution to contain a finding that the acquisition, sale, or lease of the 

property will assist in the creation of economic opportunity and would require the creation of an economic 

opportunity to be subject to specified public notice and hearing provisions. This bill contains other related 

provisions and other existing laws. 

Laws: An act to amend Sections 52200.2, 52200.6, 52201, and 52202 of the Government Code, relating to local 

government.



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 4 of 26 

AB 1666: (Brough R) Community facilities districts: reports. 
Chapter Number: 93 

Status: 7/25/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 93, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: The Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 requires a community facilities district formed after 

January 1, 1992, to prepare, if requested by a person who resides in or owns property in the district and within 

120 days after the last day of each fiscal year, a separate document titled an "Annual Report." This bill would 

require a legislative body that has an Internet Web site, within 7 months after the last day of each fiscal year of 

the district, to display prominently on its Internet Web site a copy of that annual report, if requested, a copy of 

the report to CDIAC, and a copy of the report to the Controller. By increasing the duties of local officials, this bill 

would impose a state-mandated local program.  

Summary: The Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 authorizes the formation of a community facilities 

district to finance various services. The act requires a community facilities district formed after January 1, 1992, 

to prepare, if requested by a person who resides in or owns property in the district and within 120 days after the 

last day of each fiscal year, a separate document titled an "Annual Report." The act requires a legislative body to 

report specific information regarding the sale of bonds to the California Debt and Investment Advisory 

Commission (CDIAC). Other existing law requires each county, city, and special district that assesses a parcel tax 

to provide specific information to the Controller in connection with reports compiled and published by the 

Controller on the financial transactions of counties, cities, and special districts. This bill would require a 

legislative body that has an Internet Web site, within 7 months after the last day of each fiscal year of the 

district, to display prominently on its Internet Web site a copy of that annual report, if requested, a copy of the 

report to CDIAC, and a copy of the report to the Controller. By increasing the duties of local officials, this bill 

would impose a state-mandated local program. This bill contains other related provisions and other existing 

laws. 

Laws: An act to add Section 53343.2 to the Government Code, relating to local government. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 5 of 26 

AB 1676: (Campos D) Employers: wage discrimination. 
Chapter Number: 856 

Status: 9/30/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 856, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Current law makes it a misdemeanor for an employer or other person acting either individually or as 

an officer, agent, or employee of another person to pay or cause to be paid to any employee a wage less than 

the rate paid to an employee of the opposite sex as required by these provisions, or who reduces the wages of 

any employee in order to comply with these provisions. Existing law also makes it a misdemeanor for an 

employer to refuse or neglect to comply with the above provisions of law. This bill would specify that prior salary 

cannot, by itself, justify any disparity in compensation under the bona fide factor exception to the above 

prohibition.  

Summary: Existing law generally prohibits an employer from paying an employee at wage rates less than the 

rates paid to employees of the opposite sex in the same establishment for equal work on jobs the performance 

of which requires equal skill, effort, and responsibility, and which are performed under similar working 

conditions. Existing law establishes exceptions to that prohibition, including, among others, where the payment 

is made based on any bona fide factor other than sex, such as education, training, or experience. Existing law 

makes it a misdemeanor for an employer or other person acting either individually or as an officer, agent, or 

employee of another person to pay or cause to be paid to any employee a wage less than the rate paid to an 

employee of the opposite sex as required by these provisions, or who reduces the wages of any employee in 

order to comply with these provisions. Existing law also makes it a misdemeanor for an employer to refuse or 

neglect to comply with the above provisions of law. This bill would specify that prior salary cannot, by itself, 

justify any disparity in compensation under the bona fide factor exception to the above prohibition. By changing 

the definition of an existing crime, this bill would impose a state-mandated local program. This bill contains 

other related provisions and other existing laws. 

Laws: An act to amend Section 1197.5 of the Labor Code, relating to employers. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 6 of 26 

AB 1843: (Stone, Mark D) Applicants for employment: criminal history. 
Chapter Number: 686 

Status: 9/27/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 686, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Would prohibit an employer from asking an applicant for employment to disclose, or from utilizing as 

a factor in determining any condition of employment, information concerning or related to an arrest, detention, 

processing, diversion, supervision, adjudication, or court disposition that occurred while the person was subject 

to the process and jurisdiction of juvenile court law. The bill, for the purposes of the prohibitions and exceptions 

described above, would provide that "conviction" excludes an adjudication by a juvenile court or any other court 

order or action taken with respect to a person who is under the jurisdiction of the juvenile court law, and would 

make related and conforming changes. 

Summary: Existing law prohibits an employer, whether a public agency or private individual or corporation, from 

asking an applicant for employment to disclose, or from utilizing as a factor in determining any condition of 

employment, information concerning an arrest or detention that did not result in a conviction, or information 

concerning a referral or participation in, any pretrial or posttrial diversion program, except as specified. Existing 

law also prohibits an employer, as specified, from asking an applicant to disclose, or from utilizing as a factor in 

determining any condition of employment, information concerning a conviction that has been judicially 

dismissed or ordered sealed, except in specified circumstances. Existing law specifies that these provisions do 

not prohibit an employer at a health facility, as defined, from asking an applicant for a specific type of 

employment about arrests for certain crimes. Existing law makes it a crime to intentionally violate these 

provisions. This bill would also prohibit an employer from asking an applicant for employment to disclose, or 

from utilizing as a factor in determining any condition of employment, information concerning or related to an 

arrest, detention, processing, diversion, supervision, adjudication, or court disposition that occurred while the 

person was subject to the process and jurisdiction of juvenile court law. The bill, for the purposes of the 

prohibitions and exceptions described above, would provide that "conviction" excludes an adjudication by a 

juvenile court or any other court order or action taken with respect to a person who is under the jurisdiction of 

the juvenile court law, and would make related and conforming changes. The bill would prohibit an employer at 

a health facility from inquiring into specific events that occurred while the applicant was subject to juvenile 

court law, with a certain exception, and from inquiring into information concerning or related to an applicant's 

juvenile offense history that has been sealed by the juvenile court. The bill would require an employer at a 

health facility seeking disclosure of juvenile offense history under that exception to provide the applicant with a 

list describing offenses for which disclosure is sought. This bill contains other related provisions and other 

existing laws. 

Laws: An act to amend Section 432.7 of the Labor Code, relating to employment. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 7 of 26 

AB 1856: (Dababneh D) Excise taxes: claim for refund: timely filed claims. 
Chapter Number: 98 

Status: 7/25/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 98, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Current law establishes procedures by which a person may claim a refund for an overpayment of the 

taxes, fees, and surcharges imposed by the Sales and Use Tax Law, the Use Fuel Tax Law, the Cigarette and 

Tobacco Products Tax Law, the Alcoholic Beverage Tax Law, the Energy Resources Surcharge Law, the 

Emergency Telephone Users Surcharge Act, the Hazardous Substances Tax Law, the Integrated Waste 

Management Fee Law, the Oil Spill Response, Prevention, and Administration Fees Law, the Underground 

Storage Tank Maintenance Fee Law, and the Diesel Fuel Tax Law, and of taxes, fees, and surcharges imposed in 

accordance with the Fee Collection Procedures Law. This bill would, with respect to each of the above-described 

laws, provide that a claim that is otherwise valid that is made in the case in which the amount of tax 

determined, as defined, has not been paid in full is deemed a timely filed claim for refund with respect to all 

subsequent payments applied to that determination. The bill would specify that its provisions apply only to 

claims for refund on or after its effective date. 

Summary: Existing law establishes procedures by which a person may claim a refund for an overpayment of the 

taxes, fees, and surcharges imposed by the Sales and Use Tax Law, the Use Fuel Tax Law, the Cigarette and 

Tobacco Products Tax Law, the Alcoholic Beverage Tax Law, the Energy Resources Surcharge Law, the 

Emergency Telephone Users Surcharge Act, the Hazardous Substances Tax Law, the Integrated Waste 

Management Fee Law, the Oil Spill Response, Prevention, and Administration Fees Law, the Underground 

Storage Tank Maintenance Fee Law, and the Diesel Fuel Tax Law, and of taxes, fees, and surcharges imposed in 

accordance with the Fee Collection Procedures Law. Existing law generally requires that a claim be filed within 3 

years after specified periods in which the overpayment was made. This bill would, with respect to each of the 

above-described laws, provide that a claim that is otherwise valid that is made in the case in which the amount 

of tax determined, as defined, has not been paid in full is deemed a timely filed claim for refund with respect to 

all subsequent payments applied to that determination. The bill would specify that its provisions apply only to 

claims for refund on or after its effective date. 

Laws: An act to add Sections 6902.6, 9152.3, 30362.2, 32402.3, 40112.3, 41101.3, 43452.3, 45652.3, 46502.3, 

50140.3, 55222.3, and 60522.3 to the Revenue and Taxation Code, relating to taxation. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 8 of 26 

AB 1891: (Dababneh D) School districts: special taxes: exemptions. 
Chapter Number: 450 

Status: 9/22/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 450, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Current law authorizes school districts to impose qualified special taxes, subject to specified 

constitutional and statutory provisions. Current law defines "qualified special taxes" as taxes that apply 

uniformly to all taxpayers or all real property within a school district and may include taxes that provide for an 

exemption from those taxes for persons who are 65 years of age or older, for persons receiving Supplemental 

Security Income for a disability, or for persons receiving Social Security Disability Insurance benefits, as specified. 

This bill would require any exemption granted to remain in effect until the taxpayer becomes ineligible, and 

would allow a new exemption to be granted in the same manner if the taxpayer becomes ineligible for the 

exemption for any reason.  

Summary: Existing law authorizes school districts to impose qualified special taxes, subject to specified 

constitutional and statutory provisions. Existing law defines "qualified special taxes" as taxes that apply 

uniformly to all taxpayers or all real property within a school district and may include taxes that provide for an 

exemption from those taxes for persons who are 65 years of age or older, for persons receiving Supplemental 

Security Income for a disability, or for persons receiving Social Security Disability Insurance benefits, as specified. 

This bill would require any exemption granted to remain in effect until the taxpayer becomes ineligible, and 

would allow a new exemption to be granted in the same manner if the taxpayer becomes ineligible for the 

exemption for any reason. 

Laws: An act to amend Section 50079 of the Government Code, relating to local government finance. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 9 of 26 

AB 1919: (Quirk D) Local transportation authorities: bonds. 
Chapter Number: 745 

Status: 9/28/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 745, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: The Local Transportation Authority and Improvement Act provides for the creation in any county of a 

local transportation authority and authorizes the imposition of a retail transactions and use tax by ordinance, 

subject to approval of the ordinance by 2/3 of the voters. Current law requires the bond proceeds to be placed 

in the treasury of the local transportation authority and to be used for allowable transportation purposes, 

except that accrued interest and premiums received on the sale of the bonds are required to be placed in a fund 

to be used for the payment of bond debt service. This bill would require the premiums received on the sale of 

the bonds to be placed in the treasury of the local transportation authority to be used for allowable 

transportation purposes. 

Summary: The Local Transportation Authority and Improvement Act provides for the creation in any county of a 

local transportation authority and authorizes the imposition of a retail transactions and use tax by ordinance, 

subject to approval of the ordinance by 2/3 of the voters. Existing law authorizes the ballot proposition 

submitted to the voters to include a provision authorizing bonds to be issued that would be payable from the 

proceeds of the transactions and use tax. Existing law requires the bond proceeds to be placed in the treasury of 

the local transportation authority and to be used for allowable transportation purposes, except that accrued 

interest and premiums received on the sale of the bonds are required to be placed in a fund to be used for the 

payment of bond debt service. This bill would instead require the premiums received on the sale of the bonds to 

be placed in the treasury of the local transportation authority to be used for allowable transportation purposes. 

Laws: An act to amend Section 180260 of the Public Utilities Code, relating to transportation. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 10 of 26 

AB 2032: (Linder R) Change of organization: cities: disincorporation. 
Chapter Number: 163 

Status: 8/22/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter No. 163, Statutes of 2016 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, requires the executive 

officer of a local agency formation commission to prepare a comprehensive fiscal analysis for any proposal that 

includes a disincorporation, as specified. This bill would additionally require the comprehensive fiscal analysis to 

include a review and documentation of all current and long-term liabilities of the city proposed for 

disincorporation and the potential financing mechanism or mechanisms to address any identified shortfalls and 

obligations, as specified.  

Summary:  Existing law, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, requires the 

executive officer of a local agency formation commission to prepare a comprehensive fiscal analysis for any 

proposal that includes a disincorporation, as specified. Existing law requires the comprehensive fiscal analysis to 

include, among other things, a review and documentation of specified costs associated with the proposed 

disincorporation. This bill would additionally require the comprehensive fiscal analysis to include a review and 

documentation of all current and long-term liabilities of the city proposed for disincorporation and the potential 

financing mechanism or mechanisms to address any identified shortfalls and obligations, as specified. This bill 

contains other related provisions and other existing laws. 

Laws: An act to amend Sections 56804, 56816, 57405, and 57412 of the Government Code, relating to local 

government. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 11 of 26 

AB 2291: (Achadjian R) Property taxes: delinquent taxes: partial payment: fee. 
Chapter Number: 266 

Status: 9/9/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 266, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Under current property tax law, a tax collector is authorized, with the approval of the board of 

supervisors of a county, to accept partial payments of delinquent taxes on tax-defaulted property. This bill 

would, upon authorization by ordinance by the board of supervisors, authorize the county tax collector to 

charge a fee to recover the reasonable costs of instituting and maintaining a partial payment arrangement and 

would require the fee to be subject to those existing requirements applicable to increasing or initially imposing a 

new fee or charge.  

Summary: Under existing law, the board of supervisors of a county is required to comply with specified 

requirements prior to either approving an increase in an existing county fee or charge or initially imposing a new 

fee or charge. This bill would, upon authorization by ordinance by the board of supervisors, authorize the county 

tax collector to charge a fee to recover the reasonable costs of instituting and maintaining a partial payment 

arrangement and would require the fee to be subject to those existing requirements applicable to increasing or 

initially imposing a new fee or charge. This bill would also require the ordinance authorizing the tax collector to 

charge a fee to require the fee to be paid prior to the application of any partial payments to penalties, interest, 

costs, and taxes due. This bill contains other existing laws.  

Laws: An act to amend Section 4143 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, relating to taxation. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 12 of 26 

AB 2476: (Daly D) Local governments: parcel taxes: notice. 
Chapter Number: 269 

Status: 9/9/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 269, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Would require the legislative body of a local agency, as defined, to provide notice of a new parcel tax 

to the owner of a parcel affected by the tax, if that owner does not reside within the jurisdictional boundaries of 

the taxing entity. This bill would require the notice to include specified information and to be provided to the 

property owner in a specified manner. This bill would provide that the local agency may recover the reasonable 

costs of the notice from the proceeds of the parcel tax.  

Summary: Existing law authorizes cities, counties, and special districts to impose a parcel tax or property-related 

fee for specified purposes. This bill would require the legislative body of a local agency, as defined, to provide 

notice of a new parcel tax to the owner of a parcel affected by the tax, if that owner does not reside within the 

jurisdictional boundaries of the taxing entity. This bill would require the notice to include specified information 

and to be provided to the property owner in a specified manner. This bill would provide that the local agency 

may recover the reasonable costs of the notice from the proceeds of the parcel tax. By imposing new duties 

upon local county officials, this bill would impose a state-mandated local program. This bill contains other 

related provisions and other existing laws.  

Laws: An act to add Chapter 8.5 (commencing with Section 54930) to Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the 

Government Code, relating to local governments. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 13 of 26 

AB 2492: (Alejo D) Community revitalization. 
Chapter Number: 524 

Status: 9/23/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 524, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Current law authorizes certain local agencies to form a community revitalization and investment 

authority (authority) within a community revitalization and investment area, as defined, to carry out provisions 

of the Community Redevelopment Law in that area for purposes related to, among other things, infrastructure, 

affordable housing, and economic revitalization. Current law requires not less than 80% of the land calculated by 

census tracts or census block groups, as defined by the United States Census Bureau, within the area to be 

characterized by several conditions, including a condition that the land has an annual median household income 

of less than 80% of the statewide annual median income. This bill would authorize the calculation to be made 

with a combination of census tracts and census block groups.  

Summary: The Community Redevelopment Law authorizes the establishment of redevelopment agencies in 

communities to address the effects of blight, as defined, by means of redevelopment projects financed by the 

issuance of bonds serviced by tax increment revenues derived from the project area. Existing law dissolved 

redevelopment agencies and community development agencies, as of February 1, 2012, and provides for the 

designation of successor agencies to wind down the affairs of the dissolved agencies and to fulfill the 

enforceable obligations of those agencies. Existing law also provides for various economic development 

programs that foster community sustainability and community and economic development initiatives 

throughout the state. This bill would authorize the calculation to be made with a combination of census tracts 

and census block groups. The bill would also revise the conditions to require, among other things, an annual 

median household income that is less than 80% of the statewide, countywide, or citywide annual median 

household income. The bill would also authorize an authority to carry out a community revitalization plan if the 

census tract or census block groups within the community revitalization and investment area are within a 

disadvantage community, as prescribed. This bill contains other related provisions and other existing laws. 

Laws: An act to amend Sections 62001, 62002, and 62004 of the Government Code, relating to economic 

development. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 14 of 26 

AB 2613: (Achadjian R) County auditor: audits: special districts. 
Chapter Number: 164 

Status: 8/22/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter No. 164, Statutes of 2016 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Would authorize a special district, until January 1, 2027, by unanimous request of its governing board 

and with unanimous approval of the board of supervisors, to replace the annual audit for not more than 5 

consecutive years with an annual financial compilation of the special district to be performed by the county 

auditor, or with an agreed-upon procedures engagement, in accordance with professional standards, if certain 

conditions are met. 

Summary: Existing law requires the county auditor to either perform an audit, or contract with a certified public 

accountant or public accountant to perform an audit, of the accounts and records of every special district within 

the county, as specified. Existing law authorizes a special district, by unanimous request of its governing board 

and unanimous approval by the board of supervisors, to replace the annual audit with an audit over a longer 

period of time or with a financial review, as specified. This bill would additionally authorize a special district, 

until January 1, 2027, by unanimous request of its governing board and with unanimous approval of the board of 

supervisors, to replace the annual audit for not more than 5 consecutive years with an annual financial 

compilation of the special district to be performed by the county auditor, or with an agreed-upon procedures 

engagement, in accordance with professional standards, if certain conditions are met. 

Laws: An act to amend, repeal, and add Section 26909 of the Government Code, relating to local government. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 15 of 26 

AB 2618: (Nazarian D) Community facilities districts: powers. 
Chapter Number: 796 

Status: 9/29/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 796, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Current law authorizes a community facilities district formed pursuant to an alternative procedure 

under which the district initially consists solely of territory proposed for annexation to the community facilities 

district in the future and territory is annexed and subjected to special taxes only upon unanimous approval of 

the owners, to finance and refinance the acquisition, installation, and improvement of energy efficiency, water 

conservation, and renewable energy improvements. This bill would authorize a community facilities district that 

is formed pursuant to the alternative procedure to additionally finance seismic retrofitting, as specified.  

Summary: The Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 specifies the requirements for the establishment of 

a community facilities district, including, among other things, a petition, a hearing, the establishment of the 

boundaries of the community facilities district, and an election on the question. Existing law authorizes a 

community facilities district formed pursuant to an alternative procedure under which the district initially 

consists solely of territory proposed for annexation to the community facilities district in the future and territory 

is annexed and subjected to special taxes only upon unanimous approval of the owners, to finance and refinance 

the acquisition, installation, and improvement of energy efficiency, water conservation, and renewable energy 

improvements. This bill would authorize a community facilities district that is formed pursuant to the alternative 

procedure to additionally finance seismic retrofitting, as specified. This bill contains other related provisions. 

Laws: An act to amend Section 53328.1 of the Government Code, relating to local government. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 16 of 26 

AB 2693: (Dababneh D) Financing requirements: property improvements. 
Chapter Number: 618 

Status: 9/25/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 618, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Current law authorizes the legislative body of a public agency, as defined, to determine that it would 

be convenient, advantageous, and in the public interest to designate an area within which authorized public 

agency officials and property owners may enter into voluntary contractual assessments to finance certain 

improvements. This bill would also prohibit a public agency from permitting a property owner to participate in a 

program pursuant to these provisions unless the property owner satisfies certain conditions and the property 

owner is given the right to cancel the contractual assessment at any time prior to midnight on the 3rd business 

day after certain events occur without penalty or obligation, consistent with certain requirements.  

Summary:  Existing law authorizes the legislative body of a public agency, as defined, to determine that it would 

be convenient, advantageous, and in the public interest to designate an area within which authorized public 

agency officials and property owners may enter into voluntary contractual assessments to finance certain 

improvements, including the installation of distributed generation renewable sources, energy or water efficiency 

improvements, seismic strengthening improvements, or electric vehicle charging infrastructure that are 

permanently fixed to real property, as specified. This bill would also prohibit a public agency from permitting a 

property owner to participate in a program pursuant to these provisions unless the property owner satisfies 

certain conditions and the property owner is given the right to cancel the contractual assessment at any time 

prior to midnight on the 3rd business day after certain events occur without penalty or obligation, consistent 

with certain requirements. The bill would require a financing estimate document or a substantially equivalent 

document to be completed and delivered to a property owner before the property owner consummates a 

voluntary contractual assessment pursuant to one of these programs. The bill would prohibit a public agency or 

other party to a voluntary contractual assessment pursuant to one of these programs to make any monetary or 

percentage representations of increased value to a property owner regarding the effect the financed 

improvements will have on the market value of the property unless the public agency or other party derives its 

estimates of market value using specified methods. This bill contains other related provisions and other existing 

laws. 

Laws: An act to amend Section 53328.1 of the Government Code, and to amend Section 5898.15 of, to amend, 

renumber, and add Section 5898.16 of, and to add Section 5898.17 to, the Streets and Highways Code, relating 

to property improvements. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 17 of 26 

SB 974: (Committee on Governance and Finance) Local government: omnibus. 
Chapter Number: 366 

Status: 9/14/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 366, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary:  The Professional Land Surveyors' Act, among other things, requires a county recorder to store and 

index records of survey, and to maintain both original maps and a printed set for public reference. That act 

specifically requires the county recorder to securely fasten a filed record of survey into a suitable book. This bill 

would also authorize a county recorder to store records of survey in any other manner that will ensure the maps 

are kept together. This bill contains other related provisions and other current laws. 

Summary:  The Professional Land Surveyors' Act, among other things, requires a county recorder to store and 

index records of survey, and to maintain both original maps and a printed set for public reference. That act 

specifically requires the county recorder to securely fasten a filed record of survey into a suitable book. This bill 

would also authorize a county recorder to store records of survey in any other manner that will ensure the maps 

are kept together. This bill contains other related provisions and other existing laws. 

Laws: An act to amend Section 8770 of the Business and Professions Code, to amend Sections 6107, 8205, 8206, 

8213, 8213.5, 8311, 15606.1, 40805, 53087.7, 53601, 65091, 65302, and 67661 of the Government Code, to 

amend Sections 5471, 5473, 5474, 5474.8, and 13822 of the Health and Safety Code, to amend Section 22161 of 

the Public Contract Code, to amend Sections 11005, 11005.3, 19201, and 19202 of the Revenue and Taxation 

Code, to amend Sections 2105, 36601, 36606, 36610, 36625, and 36670 of the Streets and Highways Code, and 

to amend Section 7.6 of, and to repeal Sections 7.3 and 8 of, the Kern County Water Agency Act (Chapter 1003 

of the Statutes of 1961), relating to local government. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 18 of 26 

SB 975: (Committee on Governance and Finance) Tax increment: property tax override rates. 
Chapter Number: 49 

Status: 7/1/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter No. 49, Statutes of 2016 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Current law authorizes an infrastructure financing plan or a community revitalization and investment 

plan to provide for the division of taxes levied upon taxable property, if any, between the affected taxing 

entities, as defined, and the district or authority. This bill, for the purpose of any law authorizing the division of 

taxes, would prohibit the division of revenues derived from a property tax rate approved by the voters pursuant 

to, specified provisions of the California Constitution and levied in addition to the general property tax rate 

limited by the California Constitution.  

Summary: Existing law establishes procedures for the formation of infrastructure financing districts, enhanced 

infrastructure financing districts, infrastructure and revitalization financing districts, and community 

revitalization and investment authorities, as specified, to undertake various economic development projects, 

including financing public facilities and infrastructure, affordable housing, and economic revitalization. Existing 

law authorizes an infrastructure financing plan or a community revitalization and investment plan to provide for 

the division of taxes levied upon taxable property, if any, between the affected taxing entities, as defined, and 

the district or authority. This bill, for the purpose of any law authorizing the division of taxes, would prohibit the 

division of revenues derived from a property tax rate approved by the voters pursuant to specified provisions of 

the California Constitution and levied in addition to the general property tax rate limited by the California 

Constitution. The bill would specify that this limitation does not apply to the allocation of property taxes 

pursuant to provisions relating to the wind down of the affairs of redevelopment agencies and the activities of 

successor agencies. The bill would also make various conforming changes.  

Laws: An act to amend Sections 53369.30, 53396, 53398.30, 53398.75, and 62005 of, and to add Article 18.5 

(commencing with Section 53993) to Chapter 4 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of, the Government Code, 

relating to local government. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 19 of 26 

SB 996: (Hill D) Property taxation: welfare exemption. 
Chapter Number: 836 

Status: 9/29/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 836, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: The California Constitution authorizes the Legislature to exempt from taxation property that is used 

exclusively for religious, hospital, or charitable purposes, and is owned or held in trust by a nonprofit entity. 

Pursuant to this constitutional authority, existing law partially exempts from property taxation property used 

exclusively for rental housing and related facilities, if specified criteria are met. Current law limits the total 

exemption amount allowed to a taxpayer, with respect to a single property or multiple properties for any fiscal 

year on the sole basis of the application of this criterion, to $20,000 of tax. This bill would increase that total 

exemption amount allowed to $10,000,000 in assessed value, with respect to lien dates occurring on and after 

January 1, 2017.  

Summary: The California Constitution authorizes the Legislature to exempt from taxation property that is used 

exclusively for religious, hospital, or charitable purposes, and is owned or held in trust by a nonprofit entity. 

Pursuant to this constitutional authority, existing law partially exempts from property taxation property used 

exclusively for rental housing and related facilities, if specified criteria are met, including, except in the case of a 

limited partnership in which the managing general partner is a nonprofit corporation eligible for the exemption, 

that 90% or more of the occupants of the property are lower income households whose rents do not exceed the 

rent limits prescribed by a specified law. Existing law limits the total exemption amount allowed to a taxpayer, 

with respect to a single property or multiple properties for any fiscal year on the sole basis of the application of 

this criterion, to $20,000 of tax. This bill would increase that total exemption amount allowed to $10,000,000 in 

assessed value, with respect to lien dates occurring on and after January 1, 2017. This bill contains other related 

provisions and other existing laws. 

Laws: An act to amend Section 214 of, and to add Sections 214.17 and 259.14 to, the Revenue and Taxation 

Code, relating to taxation. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 20 of 26 

SB 1029: (Hertzberg D) California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission: accountability 

reports. 
Chapter Number: 307 

Status: 9/12/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 307, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Current law requires the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission to collect, maintain, 

and provide comprehensive information on all state and all local debt authorization and issuance and to serve as 

a statistical clearinghouse for all state and local debt issuance. This bill would additionally require the 

commission to track and report on all state and local outstanding debt until fully repaid or redeemed. This bill 

contains other related provisions and other existing laws. 

Summary: Existing law establishes the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission to, among other 

things, maintain contact with state and municipal bond issuers, underwriters, investors, and credit rating 

agencies to improve the market for state and local government debt issues and to assist state and local 

governments to prepare, market, and sell their debt issues. Existing law requires the commission to collect, 

maintain, and provide comprehensive information on all state and all local debt authorization and issuance and 

to serve as a statistical clearinghouse for all state and local debt issuance. This bill would additionally require the 

commission to track and report on all state and local outstanding debt until fully repaid or redeemed. This bill 

contains other related provisions and other existing laws. 

Laws: An act to amend Section 8855 of the Government Code, relating to state government. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 21 of 26 

SB 1203: (Hertzberg D) Retirement systems: joint powers authorities: benefit formulas. 
Chapter Number: 729 

Status: 9/27/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 729, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: The Joint Exercise of Powers Act, generally authorizes 2 or more public agencies, by agreement, to 

jointly exercise any common power, which may include hiring employees and establishing retirement systems. 

This bill would authorize a joint powers authority to offer defined benefit plans or formulas that are not PEPRA 

plans or formulas provided that the plans or formulas were those the employees received prior to the creation 

of the authority, the employees are not new members under PEPRA, and they are employed by the authority 

with 180 days, as specified.  

Summary: The California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) requires a public retirement 

system, as defined, to modify its plan or plans to comply with the act and, among other provisions, establishes 

new retirement formulas that may not be exceeded by a public employer offering a defined benefit pension plan 

for employees first hired on or after January 1, 2013. Existing law, the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, generally 

authorizes 2 or more public agencies, by agreement, to jointly exercise any common power, which may include 

hiring employees and establishing retirement systems. This bill would authorize a joint powers authority to offer 

defined benefit plans or formulas that are not PEPRA plans or formulas provided that the plans or formulas were 

those the employees received prior to the creation of the authority, the employees are not new members under 

PEPRA, and they are employed by the authority within 180 days, as specified. 

Laws: An act to add Section 7522.05 to the Government Code, relating to retirement. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 22 of 26 

SB 1315: (Bates R) Counties: budgets. 
Chapter Number: 56 

Status: 7/1/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter No. 56, Statutes of 2016 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Would authorize the board of supervisors of a county to direct the publication of a recommended 

budget for the purpose of conducting a budget hearing without authorizing spending pursuant to the 

recommended budget until the budget is adopted. The bill would require the board of supervisors to follow 

specific procedures for the adoption of a budget under these provisions, including, among other requirements, 

conducting a hearing on the recommended budget on or before June 20 and adopting the budget on or before 

June 30 of each year in which the board elects to utilize these provisions. 

Summary: Existing law requires the board of supervisors of a county to approve a recommended budget, 

including revisions, on or before June 30 of each year, as specified. This bill would authorize the board of 

supervisors of a county to direct the publication of a recommended budget for the purpose of conducting a 

budget hearing without authorizing spending pursuant to the recommended budget until the budget is adopted. 

The bill would require the board of supervisors to follow specific procedures for the adoption of a budget under 

these provisions, including, among other requirements, conducting a hearing on the recommended budget on or 

before June 20 and adopting the budget on or before June 30 of each year in which the board elects to utilize 

these provisions.  

Laws: An act to amend Section 29064 of the Government Code, relating to local government. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 23 of 26 

Court Bills 
 

SB 837: (Committee on Budget and Fiscal Review) State government. 
Chapter Number: 32 

Status: 6/27/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 32, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Would, among other things, change the name of the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act, 

the Bureau of Medical Marijuana Regulation, and the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act Fund to the 

Medical Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act, the Bureau of Medical Cannabis Regulation, and the Medical 

Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act Fund, and would change references to medical marijuana or marijuana to 

medical cannabis or cannabis, respectively. The bill would authorize licensing authorities, as defined, to adopt 

rules and regulations to carry out the purposes of that act and emergency regulations, as specified.  

Summary: Existing law, the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act, regulates and licenses the cultivation, 

dispensing, distribution, manufacturing, testing, and transportation of medical cannabis through various state 

agencies, including, among others, the Bureau of Medical Marijuana Regulation, the Department of Food and 

Agriculture, and the State Department of Public Health, and authorizes the bureau to adopt rules to carry out 

the provisions of that act, as specified. That act requires a person to obtain both a local and state license to 

engage in commercial cannabis activities, except that the act authorizes, until January 1, 2018, a facility or entity 

that is operating in compliance with local laws to continue in operation until its application for licensure is 

approved or denied. That act requires the State Department of Public Health to regulate cannabis testing 

laboratories, as specified. That act authorizes the bureau to establish appellations of origin for marijuana grown 

in the state. That act establishes the Medical Marijuana Regulation Safety Act Fund and provides that moneys in 

the fund shall be available upon appropriation by the Legislature. This bill would, among other things, change 

the name of the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act, the Bureau of Medical Marijuana Regulation, and 

the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act Fund to the Medical Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act, the 

Bureau of Medical Cannabis Regulation, and the Medical Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act Fund, and would 

change references to medical marijuana or marijuana to medical cannabis or cannabis, respectively. The bill 

would authorize licensing authorities, as defined, to adopt rules and regulations to carry out the purposes of 

that act and emergency regulations, as specified. The bill would add additional grounds for disciplinary action, 

including failure to maintain safe conditions for inspection by a licensing authority. The bill would exempt the 

premises or person from the above-mentioned requirement to obtain both a local and state license only if 

certain conditions are met, including that the applicant continues to operate in compliance with all local and 

state laws, except for possession of a state license. The bill would require the State Water Resources Control 

Board, in consultation with the Department of Fish and Wildlife, to adopt principles and guidelines for diversion 

and use of water for cannabis cultivation, as specified. The bill would require an applicant for a state license 

issued by a licensing authority to meet certain requirements, including providing proof of a bond to cover the 

costs of destruction of medical cannabis or medical cannabis products if necessitated by a violation of the 

licensing requirements. The bill would require an applicant for a license for indoor or outdoor cultivation to 

identify the source of water supply, as specified. The bill would authorize the Department of Food and 

Agriculture to establish appellations of origin for cannabis grown in the state instead of the bureau.  

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 24 of 26 

Summary(Continued):The bill would require the bureau to regulate the laboratory testing of cannabis instead of 

the State Department of Public Health, as specified. The bill would authorize the State Department of Public 

Health to, among other things, develop standards for the manufacturing and labeling of all manufactured 

medical cannabis products and would require the State Department of Public Health, when it has evidence that 

a medical cannabis product is adulterated or misbranded, to notify the manufacturer, and authorizes the 

department to take certain actions. This bill contains other related provisions and other existing laws. 

Laws: An act to amend Sections 27, 101, 144, 205.1, 19300, 19300.7, 19302, 19302.1, 19303, 19304, 19305, 

19306, 19307, 19310, 19311, 19312, 19315, 19321, 19322, 19323, 19326, 19327, 19328, 19332, 19332.5, 19334, 

19335, 19341, 19342, 19343, 19344, 19345, 19347, 19350, 19351, and 19360 of, to amend the heading of 

Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 19300) of Division 8 of, to amend and repeal Section 19320 of, to add 

Sections 19332.2, 19347.1, 19347.2, 19347.3, 19347.4, 19347.5, 19347.6, 19347.7, and 19347.8 to, to repeal 

Sections 19313 and 19318 of, to repeal Article 6 (commencing with Section 19331) of Chapter 3.5 of Division 8 

of, and to repeal and add Section 19300.5 of, the Business and Professions Code, to amend Sections 2154, 2265, 

5100, and 5151 of the Elections Code, to amend Sections 1602, 12025.2, and 12029 of, and to add Section 1617 

to, the Fish and Game Code, to amend Section 52452 of, and to add Section 37104 to, the Food and Agricultural 

Code, to add Section 15283 to, and to add Chapter 6.45 (commencing with Section 30035) to Division 3 of Title 3 

of, the Government Code, to amend Sections 11362.769, 11362.777, 44559.11, 50800.5, 51341, 51349, 51455, 

and 51622 of, to amend and renumber Sections 51344 and 51345 of, to amend and repeal Section 11362.775 of, 

to add Section 44559.14 to, to add Sections 50912.5 and 51511 to, to repeal Sections 51342, 51347, 51348, 

51618, and 51619 of, and to add Chapter 19 (commencing with Section 50899.1) to Part 2 of Division 31 of, the 

Health and Safety Code, to amend Sections 12206, 17058, 18900.24, and 23610.5 of, to add and repeal Sections 

17053.88.5 and 23688.5 of, and to repeal Section 31020 of, the Revenue and Taxation Code, and to amend 

Sections 1058.5, 1525, 1535, 1552, 1831, 1840, 1845, 1846, and 5103 of, and to add Sections 1847, 1848, and 

13149 to, the Water Code, relating to state government, and making an appropriation therefor, to take effect 

immediately, bill related to the budget. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 25 of 26 

SB 867: (Roth D) Emergency medical services. 
Chapter Number: 147 

Status: 8/19/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter No. 147, Statutes of 2016 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Current law, until January 1, 2017, authorizes county boards of supervisors to elect to levy an 

additional penalty, for deposit into the EMS Fund, in the amount of $2 for every $10 upon fines, penalties, and 

forfeitures collected for criminal offenses. Current law, until January 1, 2017, requires 15% of the funds collected 

pursuant to that provision to be used to provide funding for pediatric trauma centers. This bill would extend the 

operative date of these provisions until January 1, 2027. 

Summary: Existing law establishes the Maddy Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Fund, and authorizes each 

county to establish an emergency medical services fund for reimbursement of costs related to emergency 

medical services. Existing law, until January 1, 2017, authorizes county boards of supervisors to elect to levy an 

additional penalty, for deposit into the EMS Fund, in the amount of $2 for every $10 upon fines, penalties, and 

forfeitures collected for criminal offenses. Existing law, until January 1, 2017, requires 15% of the funds collected 

pursuant to that provision to be used to provide funding for pediatric trauma centers. This bill would extend the 

operative date of these provisions until January 1, 2027. 

Laws: An act to amend Section 76000.5 of the Government Code, and to amend Section 1797.98a of the Health 

and Safety Code, relating to emergency medical services. 

 



SACA: Legislation of Interest to County Auditors 
2016 SCO Conference with County Auditors 

 

Page 26 of 26 

SB 1054: (Pavley D) Restitution orders: collection. 
Chapter Number: 718 

Status: 9/27/2016-Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 718, Statutes of 2016. 

Is Urgency: N 

Summary: Current law authorizes the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation to deduct and retain an 

administrative fee from a prisoner, or the agency to deduct and retain an administrative fee from a prisoner, 

parolee, or former prisoner, that totals 10% of any amount transferred to the board pursuant to these 

provisions. Current law authorizes the collection of restitution fines or restitution orders from a person who has 

been released from a state prison or county jail and is subject to post release community supervision or 

mandatory supervision, as specified. This bill would instead allow the department or the designated agency to 

deduct and retain an administrative fee as described in an amount that covers the actual administrative cost of 

collection, not to exceed 10% of the total amount collected pursuant to the above provisions.  

Summary: Under existing law, if a prisoner is punished in state prison or a county jail for a felony and he or she 

owes a restitution order or fine, the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation or the agency designated by 

the board of supervisors in the county where the prisoner is incarcerated, as appropriate, may deduct a 

minimum of 20% or the balance owing on the order amount, whichever is less, up to a maximum of 50% from 

the prisoner's wages and trust account or a county jail equivalent of wages and trust account deposits of a 

prisoner for transfer to the California Victim Compensation Board. Existing law authorizes the department to 

deduct and retain an administrative fee from a prisoner or parolee, or the agency to deduct and retain an 

administrative fee from a prisoner, parolee, or former prisoner, that totals 10% of any amount transferred to the 

board pursuant to these provisions. Existing law authorizes the collection of restitution fines or restitution 

orders from a person who has been released from a state prison or county jail and is subject to post release 

community supervision or mandatory supervision, as specified. This bill would instead allow the department or 

the designated agency to deduct and retain an administrative fee as described in an amount that covers the 

actual administrative cost of collection, not to exceed 10% of the total amount collected pursuant to the above 

provisions. The bill would authorize the collection of restitution fines or restitution orders, in a manner to be 

established by the county board of supervisors, by the county agency designated by the board from a person 

who has been released from a county jail without being subject to post release community supervision or 

mandatory supervision, as specified. The bill would require a county that elects to collect restitution fines and 

restitution orders pursuant to these provisions to coordinate efforts with the Franchise Tax Board, as specified. 

The bill would also make technical, nonsubstantive changes to the organization of the provisions. This bill 

contains other related provisions and other existing laws. 

Laws: An act to amend Section 2085.5 of, and to add Sections 2085.7 and 2085.8 to, the Penal Code, and to 

amend Section 19280 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, relating to restitution orders. 


	01 - 2016 CA Legislative Assembly Calendar
	02 - Index for Meeting Packet - NOVEMBER
	03 - Leg Agenda 11-2-16
	04 - Minutes - August 4 2016
	05 - Matt Siverling Report 10.06.2016
	06 - Orange County Legislative Proposal - ACLegislativeAgenda_06.10.2016
	07- Support Letter for Orange County Legislative Proposal - Michael Miller (Monterey County)
	08- 2016_March_Survey on_Courts_POBs
	Sheet1

	09 - 2016 - Legislation of Interest

